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The art displayed throughout this report is the work of the School District of Philadelphia’s art students.
The winners were chosen from entries submitted for the 2014 Annual Accounting Cover Design Contest.
The theme for this year is “The 200th Anniversary of the “Star Spangled Banner”, our National Anthem.
The lyrics come from "Defence of Fort M'Henry", a poem written in 1814 by the 35-year-old lawyer and
amateur poet Francis Scott Key after witnessing the bombardment of Fort McHenry by British ships of the
Royal Navy in the Chesapeake Bay during the Battle of Fort McHenry in the War of 1812. This contest
theme provides a unique opportunity for students to challenge their intellect, imagination and creativity to
visually express their ideas, research, experience and influence that Francis Scott Key’s words have on all
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Americans and its relevance in today’s society.

The winners are as follows:
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Grade 11

Ms. Deborah Klose, Director of Art Education
Office of Academic Support

ART TEACHER

Mr

Ms

Ms

Ms

. Marsha Rosenthal

. Andrea Keefe

. Richard P. Holmes

. Marsha Rosenthal

. Andrea Keefe

. Marsha Rosenthal

. Alison Marzuoli

. Adam Blyweiss



Introductory Section






SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
TABLE OF CONTENTS

L INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Letter of Transmittal

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting,
Govemment Finance Officers Association

Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting, Association of
School Business Officials

Organizational Chart

List of Principal Officials

I1. FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor’s Report
A. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
B. Basic Financial Statements

District-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Governmental Funds Financial Statements
Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet for Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Notes to the Financial Statements

10

11

13-15

16-32

33

34

35

36-37

38
40-41

42

43

44
45

46
47

49-86



SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
TABLE OF CONTENTS

IL FINANCIAL SECTION, CONT.
C. Required Supplementary Information other than Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Budgetary Comparison Schedules
General and Intermediate Unit Funds

Other Postemployment Life Insurance Benefits
Schedule of Funding Progress

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

D. Other Supplementary Information

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet — Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds
Schedule of Detailed Budgetary and Actual Revenues — General Fund
Schedule of Budgetary and Actual Organizational Unit Obligations

By Object Class and Uses — General Fund

Schedule of Budgetary and Actual Revenues and Organizational Unit Obligations
By Object Class and Uses — Intermediate Unit Fund

Schedule of Budgetary and Actual Revenues and Organizational Unit Obligations
By Object Class and Uses — Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Budgetary and Actual Revenues and Organizational Unit Obligations
By Object Class and Uses — Capital Projects Fund

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Schedule of Bonds Outstanding
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Comparative Schedule by Source

Schedule by Function and Activity
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

-II -

88-89

90

90-92

93

94
95

96

97
98

99- 105
106-107
108
109
111
112
113
114-116
117
118

119
120



III.

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
TABLE OF CONTENTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

Statistical Section

Financial Trends:

Table 1 Net Position by Component For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Table2 Expenses, Program Revenues, and Net (Expense)/Revenue For the Fiscal Years
2005 through 2014

Table 3 Net (Expenses)/Revenue, General Revenues, and Total Change in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Table 4 Fund Balances of Governmental Funds For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Table 5 Governmental Funds Revenues For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Table 6 Governmental Funds Expenditures and Debt Service Ratio For the Fiscal
Years 2005 through 2014

Table 7 Other Financing Sources and (Uses) and Net Change in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Revenue Capacity:

Table 8 Governmental Funds Revenue By Own-Sources For the Fiscal Years 2005
through 2014

Table 9  Assessed and Estimated Actual Market Value of Taxable Property For the
Calendar Years 2005 through 2014

Table 10 Property Tax Rates — All Direct and Overlapping Governments For the
Calendar Years 2005 through 2014

Table 11 Principal Property Taxpayers Current Calendar Year and Nine Years Ago

Table 12 Real Estate Tax Levies and Collections For the Years 2005 through 2014

Debt Capacity:

Table 13 Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Table 14 Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding For the Fiscal Years 2005
through 2014

Table 15 Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt As of June 30, 2014

Table 16 Legal Debt Margin Information For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Table 17 Ratio of Annual Debt Service for General Bonded Debt and Authority
Payments To Total Governmental Funds Expenditures Excluding Categorical
Funds For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Demographic and Economic Information
Table 18 Demographic and Economic Statistics For the Calendar Years 2005 through

2014
Table 19 Principal Employers Current Calendar Year and Ten Years Ago

Operating Information

Table 20 School District Employees by Function For the Fiscal Years 2005 through
2014

Table 21 Operating Statistics For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Table 22 Miscellaneous Statistics For the Fiscal Years 2005 through 2014

Table 23 Teacher Base Salaries For the Calendar Years 2005 through 2014

Table 24 Capital Asset Information For the School Year 2013-2014

- HI -

128

129

130

131
132
133

135
136
137

138

139
140

141
142
143
144
145



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Iv-



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

440 NORTH BROAD STREET, SUITE 301
PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA 19130

WILLIAM R. HITE, JR., Ed.D. TELEPHONE (215) 400-4100
SUPERINTENDENT FAX (215) 400-4104

February 13, 2015
To the Members of the School Reform Commission, Honorable Mayor and Citizens of the City of Philadelphia:

We are pleased to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR™) of The School District of Philadelphia
(“School District” or “District™) for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014. Pursuant to provisions of The Philadelphia
Home Rule Charter (“Charter™), these financial statements were prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) of the United States of America. As such, management of the School District assumes
full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all information presented in this report and provides reasonable
assurance that its financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

The Charter requires that the Office of the City Controller of the City of Philadelphia (“Office of the City Controller”)
performs an annual audit of the books of account, as well as financial records and transactions of the School District. The
City Controller, an independently elected local official, is required to appoint a Certified Public Accountant as deputy in
charge of auditing. Pursuant to these requirements, the Office of the City Controller conducted an independent audit of the
School District’s financial statements. The independent audit examined evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
contained in these financial statements on a test basis; assessed the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by senior management; and evaluated the overall presentation of these financial statements. The Office of the City
Controller concluded that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the School District’s
financial statements, for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
Independent Auditor’s Report is presented for your formal review and consideration.

As further required, senior management of the School District established a comprehensive system of internal controls that
are designed to protect the School District’s assets from loss, theft, and misuse. Internal offices of the School District,
namely the offices of Management and Budget, General Accounting, Accounts Payable, Grants Development and
Compliance and Audit Services, regularly review expenditures of School District funds and perform selective and random
reviews of operations and controls further ensuring that this report is complete and reliable in all material respects and in
conformity with GAAP. Furthermore and as part of the federally mandated “Single Audit” requirement, the Office of the
City Controller performs an annual audit of the School District’s internal controls and compliance thereto with legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards and grants. The Single Audit is designed to meet the needs of
federal grantor agencies. These reports are available in the School District’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of

transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the School District

Despite being a component unit of the City of Philadelphia (“City”) for financial reporting purposes only, the School
District is an agency of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (“Commonwealth” or “State”) created to assist in the
administration of the Commonwealth’s responsibility under the Pennsylvania Constitution to “provide for the maintenance
and support of a thorough and efficient system of public education.” 1t is by far the largest of the S01 school districts in
the Commonwealth employing 17,332 full time employees as of June 15, 2014 and the eighth largest in the United States
based on student enrollment data.



As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the School District include those of the primary government and its
component unit, the Intermediate Unit No. 26 (the “IU”). The financial statements of the TU have been included in the
School District’s reporting entity as a blended component unit. The IU is included in the School District’s reporting entity
because of the significance of the operational relationship with the School District. All TU services are performed by the
School District pursuant to contracts between it and the IU.

Although considered a quasi-state agency, the School District directly serves the citizens of the City of Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, the fifth largest city in the United States with a population of over 1.5 million and a land area of
approximately 130 square miles. The School District educates 11% of the Commonwealth’s 1.8 million public school
students. Total enrollment in the School District run schools has declined over the past decade while charter school
enroliment significantly increased. Enroliment for the School District is over 202,990 students including 60,512 attending
charter school; 6,927 enrolled in cyber schools and Non-Philadelphia (brick and mortar) charter schools; and 3,186 in
alternative education programs/schools. The projected enrollment for the School District for 2014-2015 is 206,567. The
continuing trend of increased enroliment in charter schools is expected to continue during this period with a projected
enrollment of 64,301.

During Fiscal Year 2014 there were 213 schools that the School District operated, as well as 26 alternative education
programs/schools (6 schools and 20 programs) and 86 charter schools managed by other entities within the city and that
serve Philadelphia’s children. In Fiscal Year 2014, about one of every three (33%) public school students in the School
District attended charter schools, making the School District a national leader in providing meaningful school choice to
parents and students. The Fiscal Year 2014 organizational structure for the School District includes 55 elementary schools;
93 elementary/middle schools; 17 middle schools; and 48 high schools. At the end of the 2012-2013 the School District
closed 24 schools due to low occupancy levels and the shift of enrollment to charter schools and by the end of Fiscal Year
2014, 9 of the buildings were sold for proceeds of $32.6 million. About 14% of the School District’s buildings are 40
years old or less, 46% are between 41 and 80 years old, 40% are 81 years or older.

The School District provides a comprehensive range of mandated educational services that include general, special, and
vocational education at the elementary and secondary levels, as well as related support and transportation services. The
School District provided limited summer, in addition to pre- and after-school program services, depending on the needs of
a community and available funding. To ensure schools have the administrative support they require and to provide
targeted supports and services, schools were assigned to one of eight geographically dispersed Learning Networks.

As an agency of the Commonwealth, the School District is governed by both The Public School Code (*School Code™)
and the City Charter. As such, the School District is a separate and independent home rule school district of the first class
established by the Charter under the First Class City Public Education Home Rule Act, approved August 9, 1963, P.L. 643
(“Act”). The Act expressly limits the powers of the City by prohibiting the City from, among other things, assuming the
debt of the School District or enacting legislation regulating public education or its administration, except only in sefting
tax rates authorized for school purposes pursuant to the directive of the General Assembly of the Commonwealth.

Prior to 2001, the School District was governed by the Board of Education (“Board™) consisting of nine members
appointed generally by the Mayor of the City. In December of 2001, however, the Secretary of Education of the
Commonwealth declared the School District financially distressed suspending the governing powers of the Board and
placing management of the School District under the control of a five-member School Reform Commission (“SRC”).
Three members, including the Chairman, are appointed by the Governor of Pennsylvania while the Mayor of Philadelphia
appoints the remaining two members. The SRC exercises all powers and has all the responsibilities and duties of the
original Board, along with additional powers. As prescribed, the SRC is now responsibie for the overall operation,
management, and educational programs of the School District, including all budgetary and financial matters. The duties of
the SRC generally include, but are not limited to, the formulation of educational policy, the adoption of an annual budget,
the development of a comprehensive capital improvement budget and program, and the incurrence of indebtedness. The
Superintendent reports to the SRC. The Superintendent during the Fiscal Year 2014 reporting period was Dr. William R.
Hite, Jr. and the Chief Financial Officer was Matthew E. Stanski.

The School District’s fiscal year is July 1% to June 30" and is identical with those of both the City and the Commonwealth.
The Charter requires that the School District adopt an operating budget, a capital budget, and a capital improvement
program each fiscal year. To ensure financial control, the SRC must first approve, by resolution, all personnel
appointments, purchases of materials, supplies, books, and equipment in excess of $25,000 and individual contracts for
professional services and associated costs in excess of $20,000. The School District maintains further budgetary controls
to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget by the SRC.



Activities in the General Fund, the Intermediate Unit Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund are
included in the annual appropriated budget. Purchase commitments are subject to an automated accounting system which
tests for verification of available allotments and are encumbered, if not in excess of the available allotment, prior to the
release of funds to a vendor and do not lapse. At year-end, encumbrances are included as a budgetary reservation in the
governmental funds, except in Categorical Funds, since they do not constitute expenditures or labilities. However,
unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

Major Initiatives

The four anchor goals set by the School Reform Commission and the Superintendent for Fiscal Year 2014 as part of the
Strategic Action Plan v2.0, were: Goal 1) 100 percent of students will graduate, ready for college and career, Goal 2) 100
percent of 8 year olds will read on grade level, Goal 3) 100 percent of schools will have great principals and teachers and,
Goal 4) the School District will have 100 percent of the funding we need for great schools and zero deficit. To achieve
these four goals, the School District recognized the need to reform both its academic and business functions as well as to
place all of its operations on a financially sustainable basis. Six specific strategies were identified to carry out the four
goals: Strategy 1) improve student learning; Strategy 2) develop a system of excellent schools; Strategy 3) identify and
develop exceptional people; Strategy 4) become a parent and family-centered organization; Strategy 5) become an
innovative and accountable organization; and Strategy 6) achieve and sustain financial balance.

The School District continued its efforts to establish a position with our stakeholders and our communities that
demonstrated openness to new ideas and a transparency of policy execution that invited broad-based support for the future
direction for K-12 education in Philadelphia and encouraged their participation in the solutions.

The major initiatives during this fiscal year were to fully implement the efforts begun to address a projected $304 million
shortfall and proceed with the transformation plan set forth in the Strategic Action Plan v2.0. Major initiatives to close the
projected Fiscal Year 2014 budget gap were: (a) to determine how best to effect needed economies from operations to
close the deficit, (b) to determine how the academic programs might be structured within existing means, and (c) to
implement the second year of the Five-Year Financial Plan which provides an operating and financial road map for
structural balance. Through a combination of revenue increases, a positive fund balance carry forward from Fiscal Year
2013 of $39.5 million and significant expenditure reductions to schools and operations the School District was able to
resolve a portion of the structural deficit and end the year with a negative operating fund balance of $14.8 million as
discussed below. However, lack of progress on the teacher’s union negotiations and less than asked for State funding
increases left a portion of the structural deficit in place.

The School District requested $304 million in recurring (net) revenues consisting of $120 million from the State, $60
million from the City, $118 million from labor and $6 miliion from other sources. The School District was only able to
secure $99 million in additional revenues consisting of: 1) $47 million from the State of which $45 million was non-
recurring, 2) $50 million approved in August 2013 from the City through a combination of $23 million in building sales
and $27 million in borrowing, and 3) labor contract savings of $2 million from the Commonwealth Association of School
Business Administrators (CASA) Union contract with $0 negotiated savings from the Philadelphia Federation of Teachers
{PFT) Union contract which is still in negotiations.

The major Fiscal Year 2014 expenditure reduction and operational efficiency initiatives to reach structural balance
included: (a) achieving personnel related savings through the lay-off of 3,800 employees; (b) significant reductions to
school-based budgets; $30 million of which was added back in July 2013 through a focus on increasing delinquent tax
collections by about $13 million and needed economies from operations and further cuts to central office administration of
$17 million which were then redirected to schools.

Budget Structure

The Operating Budget is made up of the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund and the Intermediate Unit Fund. The Fiscal
Year 2014 ending Operating Fund Balance of a positive $3.4 million compares to a positive $58.4 million for Fiscal Year
2013. Of the total $3.4 million fund balance for the Operating Fund at June 30, 2014, $18.2 million is encumbered for
existing purchase commitments or inventory, leaving a fund balance of negative $14.8 million. The following are the
classifications of the Operating Fund balances: In the General Fund, a negative $116.5 million unassigned (consisting of a
negative $132.6 million of unassigned offset by $16.1 million of encumbrances), $18.4 million of restricted for self-
insurance and, $1.3 million of non-spendable fund balance for inventories, 2) in the Intermediate Unit Fund, a positive
$0.8 million of assigned fund balance for encumbrances, and 3) in the Debt Service Fund, a positive $99.4 million is
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considered restricted for future debt service payments. The Fiscal Year 2014 available fund balance represents a $54.3
million decrease from the Fiscal Year 2013 available Operating Fund balance of a positive $39.5 million to the negative
$14.8 million Fiscal Year 2014 balance.

The SRC on May 30, 2013 adopted the fiscal year 2014 operating budget of $2,357.5 million in revenues and other
sources and $2,394.2 million in obligations and other uses. On May 31, 2014 the SRC amended the fiscal year 2014
operating budget of $2,468.9 million in revenues and other financing sources and obligations and other financing uses of
$2,541.3 million. Under the GASB 54 guidelines the fiscal year 2014 ending operating fund balance available for future
operations is an increase of $14.1 million from the amended budget ending fund balance of ($28.9) million. The main
reason for this improvement was a $12.5 million budget surplus in obligations coupled with a revenue and other uses
budget surplus of $1.6 million. The obligations favorable variance was driven by lower than budgeted costs in various
administrative offices, lower than budgeted utility and benefit costs offset by unfavorable variances in charter payments
and instructional functions including special education. The revenue surplus was driven by a $55.8 million favorable
variances in general fund revenues and sources partially offset by a ($54.2) million unfavorable variances in debt service
and IU revenue and sources.

The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) identifies over $935.9 million in facilities’ needs through fiscal years 2014 -2020
to improve major infrastructure systems and buildings. The Fiscal Year 2015 Capital Budget reflects two realities: the
completion of the final projects under the $1.9 CIP that began in 2003 and a reduction in capital spend that prioritize the
funding of deferred maintenance and life cycle replacements rather than new construction that would add to the District's
overall capacity. Currently the budget assumes a moratorium on increasing capacity through new construction or additions
over the next five years. On June 30, 2014, the School District adopted its 2015 Capital Budget and six~year capital
improvement program for Fiscal Years 2015-2020 (“Capital Improvement Program™ or “CIP”) which collectively totals
approximately $938.2 million. The School District amended its capital budget for fiscal year 2014 on June 30, 2014 to
total approximately $133.7 million.

The School District continues to pursue ongoing reductions of administrative costs to maximize resources for its primary
educational mission. The School District spends about 3% of its operating budget on administrative costs (excluding
financings); one of the lowest rates when compared with other large urban public school systems and 97% of the operating
budget is spent on capital financing and items directly benefiting the schools. Specifically, 73% is spent on academic and
education support services and the remaining 24% is spent on capital financing and maintenance directly benefiting the
schools.

Factors Affecting Financial Conditions
The information presented in the accompanying financial statements and report is best understood when placed in context
with the District’s financial planning and policy practices coupled with local social and economic factors, such as:

Financial Planning:

These are challenging times for The School District in Philadelphia. Declining revenues combined with State mandated
expenditures, increases in expenditures such as payments to charter schools and contractually obligated compensation and
benefits combined with an unsustainable cost structure has resulted in the necessity to take extreme measures and make
unprecedented program sacrifices to remain fiscally sound. The School District’s finances continue to pose challenges as
we proceed into the 2014-2015 school year. It is vital that a long-term source of recurring revenues be developed and
adequate yearly funding be obtained to provide a quality education to the student demographics which make up our
enrollment. The District is seeking a fair State funding formula that better meets the needs of students, particularly those
who are economically disadvantaged, and those who are English language leamers or have special needs. Currently, more
than 80% of the District’s students are from economically disadvantaged families and over 18,000 students are receiving
special education services. In Fiscal Year 2015 fixed costs are expected to increase by nearty $100 million due to higher
pensions and healthcare costs, utility expenses, charter school payments and salaries.

The challenge in Fiscal Year 2015 and beyond, and the intent of the Five-Year Financial Plan, will be to effect permanent
and sustainabie changes to structures and programs that cover the on-going increases in fixed charges and inflation in the
years moving forward. Despite significant progress towards expenditure control, the District is assuming lower than
anticipated revenues and higher than anticipated costs in the Five-Year Financial Plan which was adopted in December
2014. These variances will place an even greater burden to achieve structural balance. For Fiscal Year 2015 the District
asked the State for $150 million of additicnal recurring revenues, $195 million from the city (inclusive of $120 million in
sales tax), and $95 million of additional, recurring savings from labor. These are resources above and beyond what the

-4



District has already assumed. Of these revenues the District had commitments of $0 from the State, $169 million from the
City ($120 million sales tax and $49 million cigarette tax), and $0 savings from labor.

The District has taken and will continue to take the necessary steps to build the foundation upon which teaching and
learning can grow which includes: continuing to close low performing and underutilized District schools and Charter
schools; becoming a better authorizer of Charter schools; seeking revisions to its contracts; expanding high quality seats;
and, establishing baseline expectations for all of its schools.

Many factors are driving the financial challenges the District is facing.

The Local Economy: During the period between 2000 and 2010 the population of the City increased from 1,517,550 to
1,526,006, an increase of 0.6% over the 10 years, ending six decades of population decline. In the three years following
the 2010 Census, the City’s population grew by an additional 1.8% to 1,553,000 residents according to the 2013 U.S.
Census Bureau estimates.

Philadelphia has developed an increasingly diverse economy centered on the healthcare industry, higher education,
professional and business services and leisure and hospitality. The City is in the heart of a nine-county metropolitan area
with approximately six million residents making it the country’s sixth largest. Air, rail, highway, and water routes provide
easy access to the area. The City is strategically located on the east coast with easy access to markets, resources,
government centers, and transportation. Since 2008, substantial private and public investment aggregating over $8.8
billion has lead to a revitalization of the City. Today, Philadelphia is experiencing a construction boom, with over 33
major projects under construction currently, representing over $3.6 billion in combined public and private investment.
Most significantly in January 2014 Comcast Corporation announced a 59-story, $1.2 billion office tower. Higher
education and healthcare institutions are currently the most actively engaged in development.

As a major urban center with a rich historical legacy, Philadelphia is increasingly gaining national recognition for its
cultural and recreational resources, which include the many tourism assets concentrated within city limits. Expansion of
the Convention Center in 2011 increased the City’s appeal as a tourist destination. Over 3.0 million room nights were sold
in Center City in 2013, a 3.1% increase over 2012. The City is rich in history, art, architecture, and entertainment. World-
class cultural and historic attractions include the Philadelphia Museum of Art (which houses the third largest art collection
in the United States), the Philadelphia Orchestra, the Academy of Music, the Pennsylvania Ballet, the Constitution Center,
the Kimmel Center, Pennsylvania Academy of Fine Arts, Franklin Institute, Mann Music Center, Opera Company of
Philadelphia, the Rodin Museum and the recent addition of the Barnes Foundation Museum. The South Phitadelphia sports
complex is home to the Philadelphia 76ers, Flyers, Phillies, and Eagles. The City also offers its residents and visitors
America’s most historic square mile, which includes Independence Hall and the Liberty Bell, as well as Fairmount Park
and the nation’s first zoo. In 2011, Travel and Leisure magazine ranked Philadelphia as the number one City for arts and
culture in the U.S. In 2013, major attractions in Center City, such as the Liberty Bell Center, Reading Terminal Market,
and the Philadelphia Zoo, had over 15.6 million visitors.

Legislation passed by the Pennsylvania General Assembly currently authorizes 15 casinos with both slot machines and
table games, including two stand alone licenses. Philadelphia’s first casino, Sugarhouse, opened in 2010 and has received
approval for expansion to be completed in 2015. The Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board has recently announced the
approval for a second casino license in Philadelphia County. Pennsylvania ranks only behind Nevada in terms of total
gambling and slot machine revenues.

The City is a center for health, education, and science facilities with the nation’s largest concentration of healthcare
resources within a 100-mile radius. The City is one of the largest health care and health care education centers in the
world, and a number of the nation’s largest pharmaceutical companies are located in the Philadelphia area. Children’s
Hospital of Philadelphia is ranked number one in U.S. children’s hospitals.

Philadelphia has the fifth largest coliege and graduate program enrolled population of 152,500 among major U.S. cities in
2012. The undergraduate and graduate programs at these institutions help provide a well-educated and trained work force
to the Philadelphia community.

Philadelphia continues to experience unemployment at a rate higher than the national average. Employment gains in the
last latter part of 2013 and in 2014 have resulted in a decline in Philadelphia’s unemployment rate. Preliminary data from
the Bureau of Labor Statistics shows May 2014’s unemployment rate reached 7.7%, a decline of 1.2% since January.



Accounting Pronouncements: Effective for Fiscal Year 2014, the School District has implemented three new
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements, GASB Numbers (Nos.) 65, 66, and 70.

GASB 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, establishes accounting and financial reporting standards
that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were
previously reported as assets and habilities. It primarily reclassified unamortized bond issuance costs (not related to
prepayments) as a period expense; changed deferred revenue to deferred inflows of resources - unavailable revenue and
uneamed revenue; and change refunding losses as an adjustment to gross bond debt as deferred outflows of resources-
refunding charges. These change were reflected in the preparation of the School District’s comprehensive annual financial
statements for Fiscal Year 2014

GASB 66 Technical Corrections—2012 an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62 improves accounting
and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from
the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This change was considered in the preparation of the School District’s financial
statements for Fiscal Year 2014.

GASB 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Financial Guarantees requires a government that has
issued an obligation guaranteed in a non-exchange transaction to report the obligation untif legally released as an obligor.
This requirement was considered in the preparation of the School District’s financial statements for Fiscal Year 2014.

Long-term Debt: As of June 30, 2014, the School District’s outstanding principal amount of general obligation bonds and
lease rental indebtedness was $3.2 billion.

The SRC adopted a Debt Policy on February 18, 2009. The debt management policies are written guidelines that affect
the amount and type of debt issued by the School District, the issuance process, and the management of a debt portfolio.
The goal of the debt management policy is to improve the quality of decisions, provide justification for the structure of
debt issuance, identify policy goals, and demonstrate a commitment to long-term financial planning, including a multi-
year capital plan. Adherence to a debt management policy signals to rating agencies and the capital markets that a
government is well managed and can be expected to meet its obligations in a timely manner.

According to the Local Government Unit Debt Act, and as further stated in the Debt Policy, the School District must
establish serial maturities or sinking fund installments for each bond issue that achieve, as nearly as practicable, level debt
service within an issue or overall debt service within a particular classification of debt. The School District has never
defaulted in the payment of debt service on any of its bonds, notes or lease rental obligations.

Almost all outstanding bonds issued prior to 2010 (except for its Qualified Zone Academy Bonds and Qualified School
Construction Bonds) were insured and carried among the highest credit ratings in the industry from Standard & Poor’s
Rating Services, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch IBCA. The School District when issuing bonds, thereafter, has
relied on the enhanced security that the State Intercept Program provides. The State intercept ratings are Aa3 with a stable
outlook from Moody’s, A+ with a stable outlook from Standard & Poor’s and AA- with a negative outlook from Fitch.
Moody’s and Fitch provide underlying ratings for the School District which are Ba2 and BB both with negative outlooks,
respectively. Standard & Poor’s only provides a rating based upon the State Intercept Program for the School District.

Initiative to Increase Local Tax Collections: Local tax rates for the School District are authorized by the City Council.
The City of Philadelphia collects the following current and delinquent taxes for the School District: the Real Estate Tax;
the Liquor by the Drink Tax; the School Income Tax; and the Use & Occupancy Tax. These taxes represent about 38.9%
of the Fiscal Year 2014 overall revenues. The City has focused its attention on improving the collections of all taxes.
There was $26 million more in revenues Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013 in local delinquent tax
collections, some of which can be attributed to the City initiative to improve the collection of delinquent taxes.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA™) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the School District for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for each fiscal year beginning in
1984 up to and including 2013. Similarly, the Association of School Business Officials International (“ASBO”) awarded a
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Certificate of Excellence to the School District for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for each fiscal year
beginning in 1985 up to and including 2013. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement or a Certificate of
Excellence (collectively “Certificates”), a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the contents of which must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificates are valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
continues to meet legal requirements and all applicable mandates and guidelines. Consequently, the School District is
submitting it to both GFOA and ASBO respectively to determine its eligibility for additional certificates for Fiscal Year
2014.

The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire
staff of certain business and financial offices, especially the Office of General Accounting. We express our sincere
appreciation to all participants who assisted in and contributed to the preparation of this report. We also thank the Office
of the City Controller for their cooperation, support and continued assistance.

Respectfully submitted, é
/
1

William R. the, Jr., Ed.D.
Superintendent and Chief Executive Officer
The School District of Philadelphia

Matthew E. Stanski
Chief Financial Officer
The School District of Philadelphia
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CITY OF PHILADELPHTIA

OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER ALAN BUTKOVITZ
1230 Municipal Services Building City Controlier
1401 John F. Kennedy Boulevard

Philadelphia, PA 19102-1679 GERALD V. MICCIULLA
(215) 686-6680 FAX (215) 686-3832 Deputy City Controller

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chair and Members of
The School Reform Commission of the
School District of Philadelphia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the School District of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
(School District), a component unit of the City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School Distriet’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remnaining fund information of the School District, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 4.M, to the financial statements, in 2014 the School District adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis on pages 16 through 32, and the major funds budgetary comparison schedules, the other
postemployment life insurance benefits schedule of funding progress, and the related notes to required
supplementary information on pages 87 through 92 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
cconomic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to

express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary and Other [nformation

Our audit for the year ended June 30, 2014 was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the School District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Other
Supplementary Information for the year ended June 30, 2014, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic [inancial statements. The Other Supplementary Information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Other Supplementary Information as listed in the table of contents is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended June 30,
2014,

The other information, including the Introductory Section and the Statistical Section, as listed in the table of
contents, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

We also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the School District’s basic financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 (not presented
herein), and have issued our report thereon dated February 19, 2014, which contained unmodified opinions on the
respective financial statements of the governmental activitics, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund mformation. The 2013 amounts included in the Comparative Schedule by Source of
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds for the year ended June 30, 2013 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the

-14-



CITY OF PHILADETVLPHTIA
OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER

responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the 2013 financial statements. The 2013 amounts included in the Comparative Schedule by
Source of Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the 2013 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
those financial statements or to those financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 2013 amounts
included in the Comparative Schedule by Source of Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended
June 30, 2013

LV Vil

GERALD'V. MICCIULLA, CPA
Deputy City Controller
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 13, 2015
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30,2014

INTRODUCTION

As part of the Financial Section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR™), the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis narrative (“MD&A™) is an important element of the reporting model adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™) in their Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, issued in June 1999.

This section of the CAFR represents management’s discussion and analysis of the School District of Philadelphia’s
(“School District”) overall financial performance during the Fiscal Year that ended June 30, 2014. The intent of this
narrative discussion and analysis is to provide readers with brief explanations of the types of presentations that set forth
the School District’s basic financial statements, results of operations, long-term debt activity and significant variations
from the original adopted and final amended budgets pertaining to certain major funds.

The School District presents comparative financial information between the current and prior fiscal years in its MD&A
in an effort to illustrate its overall financial performance and condition. The MD&A is intended to help the reader
identify the reasons for changes in net position, expenses, revenues and fund balances from the prior fiscal year. The
MD&A is also designed to assist the reader with identifying significant financial issues, identifying changes or any
material deviations from the School District’s prior financial position, and identifying any individual fund issues or
concerns. As such, this section should be read in conjunction with and as a complement to the School District’s Letter
of Transmittal located at the front of this CAFR and the financial statements which immediately follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For twelve years, the School District has been operating under the governance of the School Reform Commission
following the declaration of financial distress by the Secretary of Education of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in
December of 2001. Since that time, the School Reform Commission has helped to realign and reallocate resources,
amend school policies and procedures, develop achievement plans and implement district-wide reforms in an effort to
improve both the quality of education and administrative efficiency.

Several key financial highlights for Fiscal Year 2014 include, but are not limited to, the following:

¢  Total revenues for the governmental funds were $2.8 billion. A little over 50% of total revenues are
received from the State, with PA Basic Education Subsidy (BES) representing about two thirds of the
State revenues and subsidies and grants awarded and appropriated by the Pennsylvania State
government comprising about one third. About 40% of the District’s revenues are from the collection of
local taxes and local non-tax sources whose contribution has grown over recent years. The remaining,
about 10%, is subsidies and grants awarded and appropriated by the Federal government.

«  Total expenditures for the governmental funds were $2.9 billion. Approximately ninety seven percent
(97%) of all expenditures were incurred for instructional services, direct student-related costs and
expenditures and services directly benefitting students and schools such as transportation, utilities and
debt service for school renovations and construction. A significant portion of expenditures are fixed
and/or mandated by regulatory and contractual obligations (e.g., benefits per the Collective Bargaining
Agreements, mandated pension plan contributions, debt service costs, and charter school transportation
and per pupil payments).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, total net position was ($1,662.5) million resulting from an excess of
jiabilities over assets. Bonds payable and premiums on general obligation bonds and other unfunded
liabilities, such as severance and termination pay liabilities, workers compensation and derivative
instruments are the primary long-term liabilities impacting this balance. Other liabilities impacting the
net position include accounts payable balances, accrued salaries and overpayment of tax revenues.
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The Operating Fund is made up of the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund and the Intermediate Unit
Fund. The fiscal year 2014 ending Opcrating Fund balance is $3.4 million, as restated for GASB 54
which became effective for fiscal year 2011. Of the total $3.4 million fund balance for the Operating
Fund at June 30, 2014, $18.2 million is non-spendable or encumbered for existing purchase
commitments, leaving an ending budgetary fund balance of ($14.8) million.

Under bond covenants, the School District is required to set aside with our fiscal agent from daily local
revenue receipts amounts sufficient to meet debt service obligations due at future dates. At year end, the
sinking funds in our fiscal agent’s custody totaled $93.5 million from the School District to pay
obligations for the next fiscal year.

Financial results for Fiscal Year 2014, compared to Fiscal Year 2013, are the result of several factors and events; the
most significant include, but are not limited to:

Total revenues for the governmental funds decreased by $9.2 miliion compared to Fiscal Year 2013.
This was the result of a $147.0 million decrease in federal grants and subsidies due to the Stimulus
Funds reductions, Department of Labor Grant expiration, Title Il reductions, and Federal Sequestration
budget reductions. Local revenue increases of $95.0 million were generated mostly from non recurring
revenues of $50 million related to building sales and a City borrowing and a one-time State grant which
passed through the City of $45.0 million. State grants and subsidies increased by $42.8 million primarily
due to pension plan, debt service reimbursements and a net increase for the Basic Education
Supplement.

Total expenditures for the governmental funds decreased by $201.7 million compared to Fiscal Year
2013. These expenditures decreases were caused by decreases of $288.3 million in instructional, student
support services, administrative support, pupil transportation costs, operation and maintenance of plant
services and early childhood; $37.2 million less in expenditures in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP);
offset by a $111.5 million increase in charter school expenses and a $12.1 million increase in long term
debt costs.

The Debt Service Fund is a separate governmental operating fund established for the accumulation of
resources to pay bond principal and interest, and for payment of other associated costs. The variance in
the net change in the debt service fund balance was a $12.5 million increase from Fiscal Year 2013 to
Fiscal Year 2014. This change reflects: a net increase of sources of financing of $24.7 million primarily
due to $19.7 million for increased tax revenues and state subsidies, and an increase in the sale of capital
asset proceeds from the sale of buildings of $7.0 million and an operating transfer from the Food Service
Fund of $0.1million, a decrease of financing issuance costs of §$1.9 million as there were no debt
issued. This was also offset by a decrease of $0.2 in interest and other revenue and a net increase of
expenditures of $12.2 million resulting from larger authority obligation payments offsetting lower
principal, interest and administrative costs

The Operating Fund balance of $3.4 million as of June 30, 2014 reflects a $55.0 million decrease from
the Fiscal Year 2013 balance. This balance, which inctudes $17.0 million of encumbrances for the
General and Intermediate Funds and $1.3 million of General Fund inventories, is primarily the result of
several factors: 1) lower revenues and other sources due to a one-time Fiscal Year 2013 deficit financing
of $301.9 million only partially made-up in Fiscal Year 2014 with one-time local and State revenues as
described above, 2) a significant increase in charter school payments due to higher enrollments and
increases in per student payments, and 3) steep reductions in personnel and other costs as a result of
ongoing cost-cutting efforts.

USING THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

This Financial Section of the CAFR generally consists of three parts: (1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis; (2)
a series of Financial Statements and Notes to those statements; and (3) Required Supplementary Information. The
financial statements are organized to first provide an understanding of the fiscal performance of the School District as a
whole. The financial statements are then later organized to provide a detailed look at the School District’s specific
financial activities.

District-Wide Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are financial statements that provide information
concerning the overall activities of the School District while also presenting a long- term view of the School District’s
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finances. These statements utilize the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement basis
which is similar to the accounting methods used in most private sector companies. For example, full accrual
accounting recognizes the financial effects of events when they occur without regard to the timing of cash flows related
to those events.

The School District’s assets, liabilities and net position are detailed in the Statement of Net Position. From this
statement, the reader can identify what assets the School District owns, what debt is outstanding and the nature of the
remaining net assets. This information is used to assess the School District’s ability to cover operating costs and
finance those services in the future as well as its remaining borrowing capacity. This statement can also be used to
determine how much of the School District’s net assets can be used as collateral to fund new services, programs or
special initiatives as compared to how much is either currently invested in capital assets or restricted for specific
purposes.

While the Statement of Net Position provides the reader with a long-term view of the School District’s financial
condition, the Statement of Activities contains detailed information pertaining to the School District’s direct costs of
providing services (i.e., expenses) and the resources used to fund those services (i.e., revenues). This presentation is
also used to identify the costs of various services and functions and the extent to which those services are able to cover
their own costs with, for example, user fees, charges and grants, as opposed to being financed with general revenues.
Moreover, the statement provides comparative data regarding whether or not the financial status of the School District
has improved or deteriorated during the reported fiscal year.

Fund Financial Statements

Principally, fund financial statements provide the reader with more detail concerning current operations than the
district-wide financial statements by providing the reader with detailed information and data regarding the School
District’s major governmental funds: General, Intermediate Unit, Categorical, Debt Service and Capital Projects. From
these statements, the reader can understand how services were financed on a short-term basis as well as what funding
remains available for future spending to cover those services.

In contrast to district-wide financial statements, the fund financial statements utilize the modified accrual basis of
accounting and the current financial resource measurement basis. Under modified accrual accounting, the fund
recognizes revenues when they become available and measurable and expenditures when the liability is incurred and
measurable, except for long-term debt and obligations which are recognized as they become due. Modified accrual
accounting measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash and, as such, provides a
more detailed short-term view of the School District’s general operations.

Fiduciary Responsibilities

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position presents financial information which captures activities where the School
District acts solely as an agent for the benefit of employees, students and/or parents. These types of activities are
excluded from the district-wide financial statements since the School District cannot use these assets to finance its
operational needs. As such, the School District is legally responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds
and statements are used for their intended purposes. The School District is and acts as a trustee for the Fiduciary

unds.

REPORTING BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

As previously mentioned the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide the financial status and
operating results of the School District as a whole. The data presented in these statements provide the reader with
insight as to how the School District performed financially in Fiscal Year 2014. These two statements report the
School District’s net position and any changes in net position which are shown on Table 1 and Table 2 below. In
addition, the information reveals whether the financial position of the School District has improved or deteriorated
during the fiscal year as compared to the prior fiscal year.
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Net Position

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District’s net position as of June 30, 2014. A more detailed Statement of
Net Position can be found on page 34 of the Basic Financial Statement section:

Net Pesition

As of June 30, 2014
(Dollars in Millions)
Table 1
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current & Other Assets § 472.8 $ 606.8 $ 83 $ 0.6 $ 481.1 $ 607.4
Capital Assets 1,808.8 1911.1 1.7 2.1 1,810.5 1,9132
Total Assets $ 22816 $ 25179 $ 100 $ 27 $ 22916 $  2,5206
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred Charge on Refunding $ 140.8 $ 154.1 $ - 5 - $ 140.8 $ 154.1
Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities $  3,798.4 $  3946.1 $ 27 $ 27 $  3,801.1 $  3,9488
Other Liabilities 286.6 323.9 72 2.9 2938 326.8
Total Liabilities $ 40850 $  4270.0 $ 99 $ 5.6 $  4,0949 $ 42756
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets - M (314.9) $  (238.2) $ 1.7 $ 2.1 $ (313.2) $  (236.1)
Restricted 118.4 123.2 - - 1184 1232
Unrestricted §  (1466.1) (1483.0) § (1.6 (5.0) (1,467.7) (1,488.0)
Total Net Position $  (1,662.6) $ (1,598.0) $ 0.1 $ (29 $ (1,6625) $ (1,600.9)

For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2014, the School District’s total net position was ($1,662.5) million. This negative
net position amount is cumulative and represents the accumulated results of all prior fiscal year operations of which
($1,467.7) million is unrestricted. This balance also reflects a decrease of $61.6 million from Fiscal Year ending June
30, 2013. This decrease was primarily caused by a decrease in capital assets of $102.7 million and a decrease of $126.3
million in cash and investment items, an decrease in deferred charges on debt refunding of $13.3 million, a decrease in
employee related liabilities of $65.9 million and an increase in accounts payable and overpayment of taxes and other
liabilities of $114.8 million.

Moreover, restricted assets are reported separately to show legal constraints from covenants and enabling legislation
when applicable that limit the School District’s ability to use those funds to cover daily operations.

Changes in Net Position

The Statement of Activities presents the School District’s revenues and expenses in a programmatic format. For each
activity, the statement presents gross expenses, offsetting program revenues and the resulting net cost of each general
activity. Since a large portion of the School District’s revenues are general or otherwise not associated with or
dedicated to providing any specific program, each activity in the statement displays either a deficit (i.e., net cost of
operating the activity) or a surplus (i.e., net profit of operating the activity).

The results of this year’s operations as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities on page 35 of the Basic
Financial Statement section. Table 2 summarizes the data from that presentation:
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Changes in Net Position
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Dollars in Millions)
Table 2
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities

Revenues 2014 2013 2014 2013
Program Revenues

Charges for Services $ 5.6 $ 6.5 $ 14 $ 1.6

Operating Grants & Contributions 778.8 865.6 74.0 76.1

Capital Grants & Contributions - 1.0 - -
General Revenues

Property Taxes 6613 650.6 - -

Other Taxes 238.0 209.1 - -

Grants & Contributions Not Restricted 164.5 100.6 - B

State & Federal Subsidies Not Restricted 9124 925.8 - -

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 211 - - -

Investment Revenue 0.8 (1.9) - -
Total Revenues $ 2,782.5 $ 2,7573 $ 75.4 $ 77.7
Expenses
Instruction $  2,149.1 $  2,180.7 $ - $ -
Student Support Services 151.1 180.3 - -
Administrative Support & Other 78.5 118.0 - -
Interest on Long Term Debt 1534 153.7 - -
Pupil Transportation 85.1 82.0 - -
Operation & Maintenance 200.0 198.8 - -
Early Childhood Education 0.1 02 - -
Food Service - - 72.1 76.1
Total Expenses $ 28173 $ 29227 $ 72.1 $ 76.1
Excess (Deficiency) before Transfers $ (34.8) 3 (165.4) $ 33 $ 1.6
Transfers 3 0.3 $ 0.3) $ 0.3) $ 0.2)
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position $ (34.5) $ (165.7) $ 3.0 $ 14
Net Position - Beginning $  (1,598.0) $  (1,432.3) $ 2.9 $ 4.3)
Prior Period Adjustment (30.1) - - -
Net Position - Ending $  (1,662.6) $ (1,598.0) 3 0.1 $ 2.9)

Cost of Services by Major Functional Expense Category

Table 3 and the accompanying graph illustrate and highlight the net costs incurred by each of the major activities
presented in the School District’s Statement of Activities. For each activity, the statement presents gross expenses and
the resulting net cost, offset by program revenues, of each general activity. The major functional expense categories
are entitled: Instruction, Student Support Services, Operation and Maintenance, Administrative Support and Other,
Interest on Long Term Debt, Pupil Transportation, Food Service and Early Childhood Education.
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Cost of Services by
Major Functional Expense Category
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Dollars in Millions)
Table 3

Gross Cost Net Cost
Functional Expense of Services of Services
Instruction 3 2,149.1 $ 1,653.6
Student Support Services 151.1 100.4
Operation & Maintenance 200.0 182.3
Administrative Support & Other 78.5 37.0
Interest on Long Term Debt 153.4 56.1
Pupil Transportation 85.1 3.5
Food Service 72.1 (3.3)
Early Childhood Education 0.1 -
Total Expenses $ 2,889.4 $ 2,029.6
Governmental Activities Net Cost of Services
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014
(Dolars in Millions)
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Major Sources of Revenues

The School District’s overall revenues are derived primarily from three sources: (i) state grants and subsidies totaling
51.9%; (ii) local taxes and non-tax revenues totaling 38.9%; and (iii) federal grants and subsidies totaling 9.2%. The
largest component of state subsidies is the basic education funding allocation which the School District can use to cover
any costs associated with the operation of the public school system while the largest component of local revenue is the
levy and collection of taxes such as real estate, business use and occupancy, non-business income, liquor by the drink
and public utility realty. A third source of revenue is both federal and state grants dedicated to providing specific

programs and services.
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The following bar graph illustrates the School District’s major sources of revenues for all Governmental Funds for
Fiscal Year 2014:

Revenue Sources
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014
(Dotlars in Millions)
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$400
$200

50 ‘ :
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As previously illustrated in Table 2, most of the School District’s revenues are considered to be general as opposed to
program related. Table 4, provides further detail on the School District’s primary sources of revenue for the General
Fund, Intermediate Unit Fund and Categorical Fund. Total revenues for all Governmental Funds of $2,760.8 million
can be found on pages 40-41 of the Basic Financial Statement Section in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance.

Revenue by Source and Type
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
{Dollars in Millions)

Table 4

General Intermediate Categorical

Revenue Source Fund Unit Fund Funds

Local Taxes $ 897.6 $ - $ -
Local Non-Tax 166.9 0.6 6.8
State Grants and Subsidies 1,258.2 101.9 72.4
Federal Grants and Subsidies 11.3 - 241.8
Total Revenue $ 23340 $ 102.5 $ 321.0

MAJOR FUND HIGHLIGHTS

While the School District maintains and accounts for a number of funds, six of these funds are considered major funds.
These funds are the General Fund, Intermediate Unit Fund, Categorical Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects
Fund and Enterprise Fund.

General Fund

The General Fund serves as the School District’s main operating fund that records all financial activity except for those
transactions which must be specifically accounted for under the other funds, such as the Debt Service Fund. The
General Fund had a negative ending fund balance of $96.8 miilion on June 30, 2014. For Fiscal Year 2014, there was
an excess of revenues over expenditures of $413.7 million, $22.6 million of capital asset proceeds and $492.4 million
of net other financing uses which together resulted in a $56.1 million negative impact to the ending fund balance.
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Intermediate Unit Fund

The Intermediate Unit Fund is used to account for state appropriations for special education and non-public school
programs as well as certain administrative costs. Programs include Autistic Support, Blind or Visually Impaired
Support, Deaf or Hearing Impaired Support, Emotional Support, Learning Support and Multiple Disabilities Support
while related administrative costs include physical and occupational therapy, special education transportation, health
counseling and sign language interpretation. During Fiscal Year 2014, the Intermediate Unit Fund had a $0.2 million
net decrease in fund balance which resulted in an ending fund balance of $0.8 million at June 30, 2014.

Categorical Funds

Categorical Funds are used to account for specific purpose federal, state, city or private grants to cover the costs of
dedicated programs and special initiatives. Categorical Funds had a $1.8 million net increase in fund balance which
resulted in a negative $4.0 million ending fund balance at June 30, 2014. The primary reason for this increase was
that the Fiscal Year 2013 deferred inflows of resources of $5.8 million were received during Fiscal Year 2014, At
June 30, 2014, there was $4.0 million still outstanding from grantors and recorded as unavailable revenues and not
yet recognized as current revenues under GASB Statement No. 33 guidelines.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is primarily used to account for the School District’s accumulation of resources for the
payment of debt service and bond issuance costs. During Fiscal Year 2014, the Debt Service Fund reflects a $1.2
million net increase in fund balance to $99.4 million as of June 30, 2014. Debt Service expenditures of $271.1
million were offset by interfund transfers of $262.5 million, revenues of $2.4 million and capital asset sales of $7.4
million.

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to cover the costs associated with the acquisition of
capital assets and for the construction, modernization, alteration, repair, and improvements to the School District’s
major capital facilities and buildings. During Fiscal Year 2014, capital outlays resulted in a negative net change of
$27.2 million in the capital projects fund which decreased the fund balance as of June 30, 2014 to $76.2 million. New
building construction totaling $4.6 million, capital alterations and improvements totaling $20.3 million, environmental
management of $3.0 million, equipment acquisitions totaling $2.9 million were offset by $3.6 million for revenues and
capital asset sales. .

Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operation of the Food Service Division. The Enterprise Fund had a
positive total net position balance of $0.1 million at the end of Fiscal Year 2014 which reflects a $3.0 million
improvement from the previous fiscal year and was used to pay back the long-term loan to the General Fund.

The financial performance and position of each of the previously discussed major funds and also non-major
governmental funds can be found in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances on pages
40-41, as well as page 44 for the Enterprise Fund, and are summarized in Table 5 and Table 6 that immediately
follows:
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Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues, Other Financing Sources/Uses, and Over (Under) Expenditures for Major and
Non-Major Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014
(Dollars in Millions)

Table 5
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Fund 2014 2013

General S (56.1) $ 71.0
Intermediate Unit (0.2) 0.4)
Categorical 1.8 3.7
Debt Service 12 (11.3)
Capital Projects (27.2) (66.3)
Enterprise 3.0 14
Non-Major Governmental - -
Total Change in Fund Balance $ (77.5) S (1.9)

Total Fund Balances for Major and Non-Major Funds
As of June 30, 2014
(Dollars in Millions)

Table 6
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Fund 2014 2013
General $ (96.8) $ (40.8)
Intermediate Unit 0.8 1.0
Categorical (4.0) (5.8)
Debt Service 99.4 98.2
Capital Projects 76.2 103.4
Enterprise 0.1 2.9)
Non-Major Governmental 6.3 6.3
Total Fund Balance $ 82.0 $ 159.4

BUDGETING HIGHLIGHTS

Included in its enabling legislation pursuant to the Philadelphia Home Rule Charter (“Charter”), the School District is
required to adopt an operating budget, a capital budget and a capital improvement program for each fiscal year. Each
budget is based on obligations; the most significant budgeted fund being the General Fund. During the course of each
fiscal year, the operating budget is amended and approved by the School Reform Commission. The final amended
budget incorporates all of the School District’s approved adjustments that were incurred since the initial advertised or
adopted operating budget was issued. While all budgets must be approved by the School Reform Commission, the
Charter also requires the governing body to levy taxes annually, within the limits authorized by the Pennsylvania
General Assembly and the Philadelphia City Council, respectively, in amounts sufficient to provide funds to cover
operating expenses and debt service charges. The Philadelphia City Council annually holds hearings to determine the
level of local tax funding for the School District.
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The capital budget is prepared as part of a six-year capital improvement program, of which, the first year of the
program is the budget for the current fiscal year. All proposed expenditures included in the School District’s Capital
Improvement Program require the authorization and approval of the School Reform Commission on a project by
project basis.

Since the School District is a service-oriented organization, it is labor intensive. Consequently, a substantial portion of
its operating expenditures involve personnel costs and related employee benefits. Personnel costs principally
encompass the costs of instructional staff (teachers), school support staff, administrative staff, custodial and
maintenance staff and transportation staff. Staffing patterns and salary costs are largely determined by school
enrollment levels, collective bargaining agreements, state mandates and policies set by the School Reform
Commission. Costs related to contracted services, such as materials, books, instructional aids and equipment, are also
primarily related to enrollment levels and certain new program initiatives. All costs are sensitive to general inflation
levels.

General Fund Budget

For Fiscal Year 2014, the final budgeted General Fund revenue was $64.8 million higher than the original Fiscal Year
2014 budget adopted in May 2013. This resulted primarily from a $45.0 million one-time state grant received from the
City of Philadelphia coupled with a $20.1 million increase in local tax revenue. State revenues also increased by $2.6
million and net all other revenues decreased by $2.9 million.

The anticipated obligations in the final General Fund budget represented an increase of $159.8 million over the original
adopted budget. This increase resulted primarily from the following changes in budgets: 1) $121.2 million increase in
Instructional and Instructional Support budgets, 2) a $25.6 million increase in charter school budgets and, 3) a $13.0
million increase in all other expenditure budgets.

The anticipated Other Financing Sources/ (Uses) in the final General Fund budget were $68.9 million favorable over
the original adopted budget. This is due primarily to a $65.7 million reduction in the General Fund to Debt Service
transfer (driven primarily by $50.0 million in additional City revenue initiated after the adoption of the Fiscal Year
2014 budget).

Actual General Fund revenues of $2,334.0 million are $33.0 million higher than those estimated in the final General
Fund budget of $2,300.9 million. Actual General Fund obligations totaling $1,923.2 million were $13.6 million lower
than estimated in the final budget of $1,936.8 million. Other financing sources/uses of $470.0 million were $46.8
million higher than the final budget and the $13.9 million favorable difference between the final budget and actual
beginning fund balance is due to encumbrance and other reserves not available for appropriation.

The actual ending General Fund balance at June 30, 2014 of a negative $96.8 million was $17.1 million favorable from
the final budget ending balance of a negative $113.9 million. Of this amount, a net $17.4 million is not available for
appropriation because it is reserved for encumbrances and inventory reserves.

Table 7 presents a summary comparison of the General Fund’s original and final operating budgets with actual

performance. More detail can be seen in more detail in the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Scheduie on page 88
of the Required Supplementary Information section:
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General Fund Budget Comparison
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Dollars in Millions)

Table 7
Budget Variance vs

Original Final Actual Final Budget
Total Revenues $ 22361 $  2,300.9 $  2.334.0 $ 33.1
Total Obligations 1,777.0 1,936.8 1,923.2 13.6
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) (492.2) (423.3) (470.0) (46.7)
Net Change in Fund Balance (33.1) (59.2) (59.2) 0.0)
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (67.4) (54.7) (40.8) 13.9
Change in Reserves - - 3.2 3.2
Fund Balance End of Year $ (100.5) $ (113.9) $ (96.8) $ 17.1

During Fiscal Year 2014, the School District incurred a number of variances compared to the final General Fund
budget including, but not limited to:

e Revenues had a $33.1 (33.0) million favorable variance due to a $25.8 million favorable variance in Local
Non Tax revenue (primarily due to a $27 million increase in the Grant from the City of Philadelphia), a $4.8
million favorable variance in State revenues, a $2.4 million favorable variance Local Taxes.

e  Obligations were $13.6 million less than budgeted primarily due to $8.5 million unfavorable variance in
Instructional and Instructional Support functions, $1.4 million unfavorable variance in charter schools, offset
by an $12.0 million favorable variance in Operating support and a $10.5 million favorable variance in
Administrative and other functions.

e  Other Financing Sources/ (Uses) were $46.7 million unfavorable from the final budget. Uses of funds
were $69.5 million unfavorable to the final budget (driven primarily from a $54.1 million higher than
budgeted General Fund to Debt Service fund transfer) offset by general fund sources that were $22.7 million
higher than budgeted.

VII. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

As of the end of Fiscal Year 2014, the School District had $3,458.7 million invested in capital assets. Over the years,
these assets have depreciated by $1,648.3 million leaving a carrying value of $1,810.4 million. This represents a
decrease of $102.7 million over the Fiscal Year 2013 ending balance. Table 8 represents Net Capital Assets. Refer to
Note 4C, page 68 for additional information.

Net Capital Assets
As of June 30, 2014
(Dollars in Millions)

Table §
Governmental Business-Type
. Activities Activities
Capital Asset Category 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land $ 131.0 $ 1323 $ - $ -
Buildings, Improvements & Intangible Assets 1,6119 1,667.1 - -
Personal Property 59.1 83.6 1.7 2.1
Construction In Progress 6.7 28.0 - -
Total Net Book Value $ 1,808.7 $ 1,0110 $ 1.7 $ 2.1
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Debt Administration

The School District is a component unit of the City of Philadelphia (“City™) for financial reporting purposes only and
the debt that is incurred is not considered the debt of the City. The School District issues debt in the form of bonds to
be used for the acquisition of land and equipment purchases, construction purposes and notes to cover its short-term
cash flow needs.

The Statement of Net Position includes deferred debt issuance costs, deferred refunding charges, bond premiums, bond
discounts, and bonds payable which are amortized over the life of the issued or refunded bonds.

Table 9, below, shows a summary of all long-term obligations outstanding:

Long-Term Obligations Outstanding
As of June 30, 2014
(Dollars in Millions)

Table 9
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities

2014 2013 2014 2013
Total Bonded Debt $ 32875 $  3,260.0 $ - $ -
Employee Related Obligations 3353 348.0 2.8 2.7
Due to Other Governments 45.3 453 -
Other 130.3 138.7 - 4.1
Total Long-Term Obligations Outstanding $ 3,798.4 $ 37920 $ 2.8 $ 6.8

The Total Long-term Obligations Qutstanding for governmental activities increased by $6.4 million. This includes an
increase in bonded debt of $27.5 million with a corresponding decrease in employee obligations of $12.7 million. All
other long-term obligations decreased by $8.4 million. Refer to Note 4D(2), pages 69-74 for additional information.

FUTURE CHALLENGES FOR THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Current Financial Situation

The School District ended Fiscal Year 2014 with a positive operating fund balance of $3.4 million as defined and in
accordance with GASB 54. GASB 54 requires reporting to reflect expendable and non-expendable categories and
amounts which are considered restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. The $3.4 million includes $18.2 million
of encumbrances and inventories for the General and Intermediate Unit Funds. The ending budgetary operating fund
balance is a negative $14.8 million once those items are accounted for. In Fiscal Year 2014 the one-time gap closing
measures and discretionary spending cuts made in the previous three fiscal years were no longer available, and
therefore, spending reduction options were even more limited. The financial picture was further adversely impacted by
the gap between revenues and rising mandated, non-discretionary expenditures, such as increases in PSERS pension
contributions, charter school payments, public and non public transportation costs and health care benefits costs. In
addition, the reserve budgetary fund balance from fiscal year 2013 of $39.5 million was used as well as non recurring
City and State revenues which were explained previously in the Transmittal Letter and in Footnote 1. E. Significant
Matters Impacting Operations starting on page 57.

As of December 18, 2014, the School District is projecting a balanced fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 budgetary
ending operating fund balance and a budgetary ending operating fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 of
a negative $31.0 million. The projected balanced Fiscal Year 2015 operating fund budget was achicved primarily
through: the passing of a $2 per pack cigarette tax (but with charter school risks associated with it); authorization by
statute for the City to re-impose an extension of the 1% sales tax; one time building sales of $15.0 million; a $12.9
million Ready to Learn State grant; and, a lower fiscal year 2014 operating deficit then originally projected. On the
expenditure side, cost saving measures that closed the budget gap was further cuts to operations and services which
were not mandated by contracts and statutes.
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The School District is in negotiations for new contracts with its largest unions which are anticipated to provide
personnel cost savings in future fiscal years. One of the unions has filed numerous grievances and legal procecdings,

some related to the suspension of the School Code and the Labor Contract, as well as for other contractual issues.

Impact of No Child Left Behind and Charter Schools

One major cost driver that affects School District spending is implementing the requirements of “No Child Left
Behind” (“NCLB”). As part of “NCLB,” students in underperforming schools must be given the option to transfer to
another public school that is not underperforming.

In addition to the school choice options required under “NCLB,” the School District in 2014 supported 86 Charter
Schools where any student may apply to attend. Funding Charter Schools, as required by the Pennsylvania Charter
School Law, Act 22 of 1997 has had a significant fiscal impact on the School District since its passage.

Charter Schools remain highly dispersed geographically, with the students enrolled in Charter Schools not all coming
from the same classroom, grade level or even from the same school or neighborhood. Therefore, given these realities,
the School District has been unable to make doliar-for-dollar reductions in cost areas such as the number of principals,
custodians and bus drivers it employs overall. Additionally, a not insignificant portion of Charter School students have
come from private or parochial schools for which the School District did not provide education previously. The current
funding formula is based upon the School District of Philadelphia’s expenditures in the previous fiscal year which does
not realistically reflect the true costs to Charter Schools to deliver regular education and special education services.
Various recent studies have shown that Philadelphia Charter Schools are being overfunded for special education
services because Philadelphia’s traditional public schools educate the vast majority of students with greater special
education needs while the majority of special education students in charter schools have lesser needs, yet it is a flat
funding formula which does not take into consideration these differences. The School District’s Charter School
expenditures increased about $109.3 million over the prior fiscal year. Fiscal Year 2014 was the third year the State
did not provide any Charter School reimbursement. At its highest level of reimbursement, the State provided $109.5
million in Fiscal Year 2011. As a result, the impact of Charter Schools to the District’s operating budget has increased
both due to increases in Charter School costs driven by increased enrollments and per pupil costs and decreases in State
Reimbursement.

“NCLB” also mandated that all teachers of core academic subjects must be considered "highly qualified” by 2006. To
meet this standard, all teachers must be fully certified and/or licensed by the state; hold at least a bachelor's degree from
a four-year institution; and demonstrate competence in each core academic subject area they teach. By the end of Fiscal
Year 2013, 93.9% of the teachers in the School District were considered highly qualified, and 98.9% were considered
fully certified. Due to recruitment and retention strategies, on-going professional development, and staffing process
improvements, the percentage of highly qualified teachers of core academic subjects was raised to 99.3% in Fiscal
Year 2014. However, due to changes in the way teacher data was reported to the Pennsylvania Department of
Education and the addition of Pennsylvania Value Added Assessment System (PVASS) data, the percentage of highly
qualified teachers decreased to 87.8% in Fiscal Year 2014.

Academic Achievement

The major focus for the district in fiscal year 2014 was to promote a shift in instructional practice in order to improve
academic outcomes of all students. This shift was fostered by the demands of the internationally benchmarked
Pennsylvania Common Core State Standards. The importance of mastering reading by the end of 3rd grade is widely
known and accepted as a key indicator of success in the later grades. Students who fail to reach this critical milestone
often falter in the later grades and drop out before earning a high schoo! diploma. In The Schoot District of
Philadelphia, 39.9% of our 3rd graders attained proficiency on the Pennsylvania State School Assessment (PSSA) in
Reading/English. Moreover, proficiency rates for subgroups such as English Language Learners, African-Americans,
and Latinos were 13.5%, 35.5% and 34.8% respectively.

Among other outcomes related to student performance, we saw the following trends:

e  Several of our struggling schools led the district in academic gains

e  Eighth graders across the district performed better than the previous year.

»  40% of our schools saw increases in PA School Performance Profile (SPP) scores.

e A third of our schools improved their Developmental Reading Assessment (DRA) proficiency over the
previous year.

e  Based on our average growth index (AGI), there was significant evidence that the district exceeded the State's
standard for academic growth in both mathematics and reading.

The Superintendent’s Office in collaboration with the Assistant Superintendents launched the yearlong professional

learning series in August in anticipation of the upcoming school year to set the pace for summer planning and informed
decision-making. The Professional Development Plan was the District’s response to the demands of the Common Core
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Shifts for English/Language Arts, Mathematics, Social Studies, Science, and the Technical Subjects and was central to
the success of the broader plan to improve student outcomes in both the early and secondary grades.

The Professional Development Plan focused on building school leaders’ knowledge and practice germane to a finite
and manageable set of district-wide instructional practices. This successful initiative was reflective of the District’s
collaborative attempt to promote a finite set of theory-based instructional practices across content areas and grades. The
District’s leadership was exposed to eight proven best practices for planning and facilitating quality initial and needs-
based re-teaching in Reading/English, Mathematics, Social Studies, Science, and the Technical Subjects with a focus
on higher-order thinking, gradual release, general and domain specific vocabulary development, and lesson planning
linked to the Common Core Shifts and the Danielson Framework for Teaching. Professional learning germane to each
focus area included tools and protocols for effective implementation. Each implementation tool and protocol was made
available to school leaders in online, shared folders to efficient access. Assistant Superintendents linked Principal
Evaluations to evidence of implementation and student outcomes in Reading/English and Mathematics.

Concurrently the Professional Development Plan focused on building school leaders’ knowledge and practice relative
to implementation of the Common Core State Standards. This component of the professional learning initiative was
reflective of the District’s formal intent to ensure that all students had equal access to quality instruction aligned with
the rigorous demands of the internationally benchmarked standards. The District’s school leaders were strategically
exposed to standardized interpretation of the literacy standards and interdisciplinary implications; the complexity of the
mathematics standards and their interrelation to build teacher capacity and ultimately conceptual understanding among
our students.

There are two required Pennsylvania State Assessment Examinations administered to students, the Pennsylvania
System of Schoo! Assessment (PSSA) and the Keystone Examination.

2014 PSSA Results

In 2014, students in grades 3 to 8§ are currently administered the PSSA in reading, math, science and writing which is
given annually throughout the Commonwealth. Science is offered to grades 4 and 8 only and writing to grades 5 and 8
only. A summary of the 2013-2014 school year PSSA results is provided below.

All Students

e  From 2013 to 2014, proficiency rates increased in Science but decreased in Mathematics, Reading, and Writing. :
o  Mathematics proficiency rates decreased by 1.7 percentage points from 46.9% to 45.2%.
o  Reading proficiency rates decreased by 0.3 percentage points from 42.3% to 42.0%.
o  Science proficiency rates increased by 0.7 percentage points from 36.6% to 37.2%.
o  Writing proficiency rates decreased by 0.4 percentage points from 41.5% to 41.2%.

Grade Levels

e  Proficiency rates increased in Reading, Science, and Writing for certain grades.
o In Reading, the proficiency rate increased for 4™ graders (2.3 percentage points), 7 graders (3.2
percentage points) and 8 graders (3.5 percentage points).
o In Science, the proficiency rate increased for 8 graders by 1.5 percentage points.
o In Writing, the proficiency rate increased for 8% graders by 2.0 percentage points.
e In all other subjects and grade levels, proficiency rates decreased.

Econemically Disadvantaged, English Language Learners, and Special Educatien Students?

e In most cases, proficiency rates for these subgroups decreased from 2013 to 2014.
o  Proficiency rates for Special Education students increased in Science by 1.4 percentage points but
decreased in all other subjects by the following percentage points: Mathematics by 1.4, Reading by 0.2,
and Writing 1.9,
o  Changes in proficiency rates for English Language Learners varied by subject. In Mathematics and
Writing they increased by 0.1 and 0.2 percentage points while in Reading and Science they decreased by
1.1 percentage points respectively.

! Differentials are calculated using unrounded proficiency rates. For this reason, differentials may not be
equivalent to the difference between the rounded percentages presented here.

? Students are identified as economically disadvantaged if they qualify for public assistance, qualify for free
or reduced-price lunch, or attend universal feeding schools.
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o  Proficiency rates for Economically Disadvantaged students increased in Science by 0.4 percentage
points but decreased in all other subjects as follows: Mathematics by 2.0, Reading by 0.5, and Writing
by 0.4.
e  Following historical trends, proficiency rates for these subgroups were lower than those for all students across
all subjects.

Race/Ethnicity

e  Proficiency rates for Asian students increased in all subjects except for Mathematics which decreased by 0.1
percentage points. The increases by percentage points were: Reading by 0.3 percentage points, Science by 0.1,
and Writing by 1.2.

e  Proficiency rates for Black/African American students varied by subject. They decreased in Mathematics by 2.5
percentage points, Reading by 0.4, and Writing by 0.7 while Science increased by 0.9 percentage points.

e  Proficiency rates for Hispanic/Latino students increased in Science by 0.3 percentage points but decreased in all
other subjects as follows: Mathematics by 1.6, Reading by 1.4, and Writing by 0.6 percentage points.

e  Proficiency rates for White students decreased in Mathematics by 1.3 percentage points, Science by 1.3,
Writing by 1.3 percentage points and increased only in Reading by 0.3 percentage points.

School-Level Proficiency

e Of the 168 schools that administered the PSSA in grades 3-8 in School Year 2012-2013 and School Year 2013-
2014:
o 120 (71.4%) demonstrated a decrease in the percentage of students scoring proficient or
advanced in Mathematics and 48 (28.6%) demonstrated an increase.
o 113 (67.3%) demonstrated a decrease in the percentage of students scoring proficient or
advanced in Reading and 55 (32.7%) demonstrated an increase.
e  On average, school-level proficiency rates declined by 3.4 percentage points in Mathematics and by 1.7
percentage points in Reading.

2014 Keystone Examination Results

Keystone Examinations were administered for the first time in the 2012-2013 school year after a pilot administration
the previous spring and 2013-2014 represents the second year of testing. Keystone Examinations are end-of-course
assessments designed to assess proficiency in the area of Algebra I, Literature, and Biology. They serve two purposes:
1) high school accountability and assessments for federal and state purposes, and 2) high school graduation
requirements for students beginning with the class of 2017.

District-Level Proficiency
All Students

e From 2013 to 2014, proficiency rates increased in Biology but decreased in Algebra I and Literature’.
o Algebra I proficiency rates decreased by 1.2 percentage points from 39.8% to 38.6%.
o  Biology proficiency rates increased by 5.3 percentage points from 20.3% to 25.6 %.
o  Literature proficiency rates decreased by 1.9 percentage points from 53.4% to 51.5%.

Economically Disadvantaged, English Language Learners, and Special Education Students’

e Proficiency rates in Algebra I increased for these subgroups from 2013 to 2014.
o  Changes in proficiency rates for Economically Disadvantaged students varied by subject. Proficiency
rates increased in Algebra I (0.1 percentage points) and Biology (5.7 percentage points) but decreased in
Literature (0.7 percentage points).
o Changes in proficiency rates for English Language Learners varied by subject. Proficiency rates
increased in Algebra I (1.2 percentage points) but decreased in Literature (3.7 percentage points) and
Biology (0.1 percentage points).

3 Differentials are calculated using unrounded proficiency rates. For this reason, differentials may not be
equivalent to the difference between the rounded percentages presented here.

* Students are identified as economically disadvantaged if they qualify for public assistance, qualify for free
or reduced-price lunch, or attend universal feeding schools.
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o  Proficiency rates for Special Education students increased in all subjects: Algebra | by 0.4 percentage
points, Biology by 1.0 and Literature by 0.7.
e Following historical trends, proficiency rates for these subgroups were lower than those for all students across
all subjects.

Race/Ethnicity

e  Proficiency rates for Asian students increased in Algebra [ by 0.6 percentage points, Biology by 0.9 percentage
points and decreased by 0.3 percentage points for Literature.
e  Proficiency rates for Hispanic/Latino students increased in Biology by 3.0 percentage points but decreased in
Algebra I by 2.1 percentage points and Literature by 5.0 percentage points.
e  For Black/African American and White students, changes in proficiency rates varied by subject.
o For Black/African American students, proficiency rates increased in Biology (5.1 percentage points) but
decreased in Algebra I (0.9 percentage points, and Literature (1.0 percentage points).
o  For White students, proficiency rates increased in Biology (5.6 percentage points) but decreased in
Algebra I (1.6 percentage pointsy and Literature (2.4 percentage points).

School-Level Proficiency

e  Of the 44 schools that administered the Keystone Exams in grade 11 in School Year 2012-2013 and School
Year 2013-2014
o 26 (59.1%) demonstrated a decrease in the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced in
Algebra I, 17 (38.6%) demonstrated an increase and 1 (2.3%) demonstrated no change.
o 27 (61.4%) demonstrated a decrease in the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced in
Literature, 16 (36.4%) demonstrated an increase and 1 (2.3%) demonstrated no change.
o 10 (22.7%) demonstrated a decrease in the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced in
Biology, and 34 (77.3%) demonstrated an increase.
e  On average, school-level proficiency rates decreased by 1.2 percentage points in Algebra 1 and in Literature
and increased by 5.6 percentage points in Biology.

Climate and Safety

“NCLB” also requires that all states establish and implement standards for identifying "Persistently Dangerous
Schools." In Pennsylvania, a school is labeled “Persistently Dangerous” based on and as determined by the number of
dangerous incidents (defined as weapon possession or violence) that result in arrest in the school, on school premises
and on the highway (to and from School). The number of all District violent incidents decreased by 10.0% from Fiscal
Year 2013 to Fiscal Year 2014.

There has been significant focus and much improvement to school safety over the past several years and in particular in
Fiscal Year 2014. Much of this improvement has been due to an emphasis on school safety team meetings and stronger
collaboration between SDP offices and the Philadelphia Police Department. The District also maintains a “focus
schools list” that provided direct safety supports to the neediest schools.

The School District has been making progress in improving school safety since Fiscal Year 2004 when twenty-seven
(27) schools were labeled “Persistently Dangerous” (PDS) based on serious incidents from the previous two years
data. The two Philadelphia schools designated Persistently Dangerous in Fiscal Year 2014 have made significant
progress over the past two years and they are no longer designated as PDS. The School District continues to emphasize
reporting all incidents while focusing on improving the quality of school based interventions.

The School District is strongly committed to creating a safe and orderly environmment in all its schools. The School
District is undertaking efforts to not only remove schools from the Persistently Dangerous list, but also to enhance
school climate beyond simply reducing and eliminating violence. The District is currently implementing, with the
assistance of grant funding, evidenced-based school climate initiatives in several elementary and high schools and
expects to grow these initiatives in the next few years. The Student Code of Conduct is designed to help create an
environinent that is more conducive to learning. The due process and transition hearing protocols set in place are
executed swiftly and with fidelity by independent hearing officers to ensure the safety of the school environment as
well as the safety and well being of the disruptive student to be moved to a setting that will assist them and address the
serious violation of the Code of Student Conduct. This process is overseen by the Office of Student Rights and
Responsibilities. All of the contracted provider transition schools in the SDP Alternative Education Division, have a
School District Transition Liaison that is responsible for insuring the transition process is executed with fidelity and the
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IX.

students are afforded the academic and behavioral support needed while attending the alternative school program
before returning to the comprehensive school setting or other academic options to graduate.

Since students cannot learn if they exhibit inconsistent behaviors or truancy, or if they have barriers to learning due to
social and emotional challenges, the School District, under Alternative Education, provides resources for the students
through the alternative models of Educational Options Program (EOP), Transition Schools, or Accelerated/Multiple
Pathways to Graduation programs. These schools and opportunities provide support, intervention and strategies for
students and parents to keep students in school and responsible for their actions in addition to providing for education
at grade and age appropriate levels with a goal of graduation. Students can be referred to Alternative Education
programs through self-referrals, transfers, and the response to intervention process for a change in placement. In
addition, the Re-Engagement Center also provides the support and resource for admission to these programs for
students that have been disconnected or disengaged from the educational setting in Philadelphia. Transition schools
offer the programs that support promotion and graduation with a personalized learning plan model integrated with the
core curriculum for academics and the accelerated school model provides the same with an enhanced pace of study that
supports a student that is overage/under credited to graduate within three years with a high school diploma.

To ease the transition back to school for students who are returning from juvenile detention or incarceration, the School
District offers the Re-Entry Transition Initiative - Welcome Return Assessment Process ("RETI-WRAP"), is a modified
transition program that is a collaboration with the Office of Juvenile Probation and the Department of Human Services
that assesses and evaluates students before they return to school. Additionally, the procedures for students to return to
the regular education setting after attending an alternative school have been enhanced with School District of
Philadelphia staff designated to support the parent, student, and regular education school program to ensure the
successful transition of the student and increase positive behavior and attendance upon the student’s return.

Capital Improvement Program

The School District’s Capital Improvement Program (“CIP”) supports the School District’s initiative to equitably
provide space for reduced class size; enhance academic reform efforts by ensuring students have state-of-the-art
facilities; and present all students with a safe, healthful, learning environment. The original CIP addressed the need for
new construction, renovations and repairs and was assessed a total of $1.9 billion from Fiscal Year 2003 to Fiscal Year
2012. The Office of Capital Programs has overseen or is currently overseeing the design and construction of eight
(8) new neighborhood high schools, eight (8) new smaller high schools and five (5) new neighborhood elementary
schools; thirteen (13) middle school conversions; fifteen (15) school additions, and three (3) primary education centers.
Other specific plans under the CIP include classroom modernization, upgrades to school athletic fields and stadiums,
environmental projects, boiler, roof and window replacements, and substantial renovations to existing school
buildings. The current CIP covers $938.2 million from Fiscal Year 2015 to Fiscal Year 2020 and is updated every year
with the planned annual expenditure levels dependent on the district's ability to fund and issue long-term debt
instruments as determined by the annual operating budget's debt capacity.

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial conditions of the School District. If you
have questions about the report or need additional financial information, please contact
Matthew E. Stanski, Chief Financial Officer or Marcy F. Blender, CPA, Comptroller, at 440 North Broad Street,
Philadelphia, PA 19130.
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ASSETS
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agent
Equity In Pooled Cash and Investments
Taxes Receivable ( Net )
Due from Other Governinents
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance)
Accrued Interest Receivable
Internal Balances
Inventory
Prepaid Bond Insurance Premium Costs
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Investiments Held by Trustee
Funds on Deposit
Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings and Improvements
Personal Property
Construction in Progress
Intangibles
Accumnulated Depreciation

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Overpayment of Taxes
Accrued Salaries and Beuefits Payable
Termination Compensation Payable
Severance Payable
Other Liabilities
Payable to External Parties
Derivative Instrument - Swap Liability
Uneamed Revenue
Due to Other Governments
Bond Interest Payable
Non-Current Liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Medical Self-Insurance
Debt Service
Special Revenue Funds & Permanent Funds
Expendable - Student Health
Non-Expendable - Scholarships
Arbitrage Rebate Payable
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

School District of Philadelphia
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Business-type

Govemmental Activities Activities Total
$ 184,961 10,902 $ 195,863
99,274,605 - 99,274,605
27,491,545 - 27,491,545
175,651,002 - 175,651,002
52,766,406 5,909,961 58,676,367
8,127,404 3,204,887 11,332,291
600,678 - 600,678
2,594,547 (2,594.547) -
1,285,461 1,764,204 3,049,665
7,831,686 - 7,831,686
78,426,117 - 78,426,117
238,034 - 238,034
18,375,000 - 18,375,000
130,922,021 - 130,922,021
3,026,434,637 - 3,026,434,637
230,420,934 15,732,384 246,153,318
6,725,704 - 6,725,704
48,629,076 - 48,629,076
(1,634,333,998) (13,993,603) (1,648,327,601)
2,281,645,820 10,034,188 2,291,680,008
140,846,087 - 140,846,087
92,760,322 6,367,342 99,127,664
16,760,982 - 16,760,982
60,929,532 749,492 61,679,024
23,758,223 137,660 23,895,883
6,620,865 - 6,620,865
121,187 - 121,187
14,656,093 - 14,656,093
23,113,539 - 23,113,539
12,447,134 - 12,447,134
3,289,530 - 3,289,530
32,232,819 - 32,232,819
274,701,285 - 274,701,285
3,523,671,068 2,660,664 3,526,331,732
4,085,062,579 9,915,158 4,094,977,737
(314,889,535) 1,738,781 (313,150,754)
18,375,000 - 18,375,000
93,491,234 - 93,491,234
3,427,773 - 3,427,773
2,865,760 - 2,865,760
265,706 - 265,706
(1,466,106,610) (1,619,751} (1,467,726,361)
$ (1,662,570,672) 119,030 $ (1,662,451,642)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Schaol Thistrict of Philadelphia
Statement of Activitics
For the Year Fnded Jupe 30, 2014

Progran Revennes

Net (Expense) Revenue and Clanges in Net Position

-gg-

Operating Capital
Tndirect Fxpensc Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmenital Business-type
Functions: Programs Expenses Allocation Rervices Contributions Contributions Activities Activitics Total
Governmental Activities
Testrsction 2,145,121,099 3 - 3 8,181 $ 494732272 (1,653,569,546) - $ {1,653,569,546)
Student Support Servicos 151,133 843 - . 50,715,085 (100,418.758) - (100.418,758)
Adminisirative Support 103 - 4312315 139,088,737 (60,065,262) . £R0L065,262)
ation & Maintenance of Plant Services 200,838,933 (517,628) 225045 i7,448 975 {182,347 284) - (182,347 284)
Pepil Transportatioa 85,102,746 - 81,562,514 {3,539,732) - {3,539,732)
Al Other Support Services - (2,179,188) 23,044,394 23,044,394
Early Childhood Fducation 23 - 137,625 - - -
Tnterest on Lang-Term Dbt 3380712 - 97,260,175 (56,120,537) -
Total Govermmental Activities 2818, 158,092 (R17.628) 778,766,198 {2013,016,725)
Business-Type Activitics:
Food Service 71,340,178 817.628 1,408 509 74,038,754 - 3289457 3,289,457
Toial Business Fype Activities 71,340,178 - 817,628 1,408,500 74,038,754 - 3289457 3289457
Total 2,889 498 270) 3 - s 6,966,050 3 $52,804,952 £2,032,016,725) 1,289,457 $ (2,029,727 26%)
General Revenues'Gain/{h.oss Yinvestment Revenue Transfers:
Property Taxes 661,262 818 - 3 661,262,818
Use & Oocupancy Taxes 37077100 137,677,100
Liquor Taxes 62,105,157 . 62,103,157
School (Non-Business) Income Taxes 37274316 - 37,274,316
Public Utility / PILOT Taxcs 1,070,893 - 1,070,893
Grants and Contrihutions Not Restricted to Specific Programs 164,523,806 164,523,806
State & Federal Subsidlics Not Restricted to Specific Programs 912,421,435 - 912,421,435
Gain’{] oss} on Sale of Capital Assets 25,115,975 - 21,115,973
Transfers (289,457) -
Investment Revenue - 837,598
Total General Revenue: and Transfers {289.457) g 1,008 289,098
Change in Net Position 2,000 N0HY (31,438,170}
Net Position - As of July 1, 2013 (2R%¢,9743 {1,600,944,225)
Priar Period Adjustments -
Net Position - As of Iime 20, 2014 119,030 3

The notes to the basic financial stalements 2re an integral part of this statement.




ASSETS

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agent
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investiments
Cash and Investments Held by Trustee
Funds on Deposit

Taxes Receivable (Net)

Due from Other Funds

Due from Other Governinents
Accounts Receivable (Net)

Accrued Interest Receivable

Inventory

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Overpayment of Taxes
Accrued Salaries and Benefits Payable
Termination Compensation Payable
Severance Payable
Unearned Revenue
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Governiments
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable Tax and Accounts Receivable Revenue
Unavailable Grant Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Permanent Fund Principal
Restricted:
Medical Self~Insurance
Retirement of Long Term Debt
Debt Service Interest
Arbitrage Rebate Payable
Trust Purposes
Capital Purposes
Assigned:
Special Education
Defeasance
Future Capital Projects Programs
Unassigned:

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

School District of Philadelphia

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30,2014
General Intermediate Categorical
Fund Unit Fund Funds

184,961 5 - -

- 13,683,999 7,045,219

18,375,000 - -
175,651,002 - -
2,594,547 - -
16,017,014 6,604,461 29,360,966
9,079,957 420,766 -
1,256,884 - -
223,159,365 $ 20,709,226 36,406,185
63,454,734 $ 12,019,217 14,641,762
16,760,982 - -
45,703,750 7,856,643 7,111,876
23,758,223 - -
6,620,865 - -

- - 12,447,134

14,314,109 - -
1,014,459 19,274 2,205,413
13,633 - -
171,640,755 19,895,134 36,406,185
148,338,556 5 - -
R - 4,020,528
148,338,556 - 4,020,528
1,256,884 - -
18,375,000 - -

- 814,092 .
(116,451,830) - (4,020,528)
(96,819,946) 814,092 (4,020,528)
223,159,365 $ 20,709,226 36,406,185

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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Debt Service
Fund

Capital
Projects Fund

Non-Major
Governmental
Fands

Total
Governmental
Funds

99,274,605

600,678

78,426,117
351,697
238,034

773,846

6,300,118

$ 78,611,078
99,274,605
27,381,033

238,034
18,375,000
175,651,002
2,594,547
52,756,287
9,500,723
600,678
1,256,884

99,875,283

79,789,694

6,300,118

$ 466,239,871

341,984

107,554

2,612,474

237,107

$ 92,734,772
16,760,982

60,909,376

23,758,223

6,620,865

12,447,134

14,656,093

3,289,530

121,187

449,538

2,899,965

231,298,162

659,155

$ 148,338,556
4,679,683

659,155

153,018,239

65,169,807
28,321,427

5,934,511

265,706

73,364,043

2,600,825

1,365,405

4,928,128

1,256,884
1,365,405

18,375,000
65,169,807
28,321,427
265,706
4,928,128
73,364,043

814,092
5,034,511
2,600,825

(120,472,358)

99,425,745

76,230,574

6,263,533

81,923,470

99,875,283

79,789,694

6,300,118

$ 466,239,871




School District of Philadelphia
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet for Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds (page 37) $ 81,923,470

Amounts reported for governmental activites in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 1,808,761,927

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds. 151,644,870

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period, and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the governmental
funds. (3,822,633,487)

Derivative instruments, are not due and payable in the current period, and
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. (23,113,539)

Deferred outflows of resources, including deferred refunding charges, are

not reported in the governmental funds. 140,846,087
Net position of governmental activities (page 34) $ (1,662,570,672)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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School District of Philadelphia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

General Intermediate Categorical
Fund Unit Fund Funds
REVENUES
Local Taxes $ 897,596,570 $ - $ -
Locally Generated Non Tax 166,929,950 582,325 6,778,366
State Grants and Subsidies 1,258,151,837 101,881,034 72,365,707
Federal Grants and Subsidies 11,286,321 - 241,777,243
Total Revenues 2,333,964,678 102,463,359 320,921,316
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 878,223,203 229,582,035 238,286,117
Student Support Services 23,165,614 92,479,208 36,196,590
Administrative Support 57,167,695 9,555,275 33,411,078
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services 200,342,429 - 401,237
Pupil Transportation 85,520,002 - -
All Other Support Services (25,449,466) - -
Early Childhood Education - - 137,625
Payments to Charter Schools 701,273,623 - 11,238,422
Debt Service:
Principal - - -
Interest - N -
Principal & Interest - Authority - - -
Administrative Expenditures - - -
Capital Outlay:
New Buildings and Additions - - =
Environmental Management - - -
Alterations and Improvements - - -
Equipment Acquistions - - -
Total Expenditures 1,920,243,100 331,616,518 319,671,069
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures 413,721,578 (229,153,159) 1,250,247
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 1,417,351 228,999,479 1,961,673
Transfers Out (493,824,415) - (1,417,351)
Capital Asset Proceeds 22,581,503 - -
Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) (469,825,561) 228,999,479 544,322
Net Change in Fund Balances (56,103,983) (153,680) 1,794,569
Fund Balances, July 1, 2013 (40,788,429) 967,772 (5,815,097)
Change in Inventory Reserve 72,466 - -
Fund Balances, June 30, 2014 $ (96,819,946) $ 814,092 S (4,020,528)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Non-Major

Debt Service Capital Governmental Total

Fund Projects Fund Funds Governmental Funds
- - - $ 897,596,570

2,389,482 346,366 63,856 177,090,345

- 641,694 - 1,433,040,272

- - - 253,063,564

2,389,482 988,060 63,856 2,760,790,751

- - 52,937 1,346,144,292

- - - 151,841,412

- - - 100,134,048

- - - 200,743,666

- - - 85,520,002
- - - (25,449,466)

- - - 137,625

- - - 712,512,045
106,059,250 - - 106,059,250
91,113,719 - - 91,113,719
71,346,198 - - 71,346,198
2,630,637 - - 2,630,637

- 4,648,171 - 4,648,171

- 2,973,389 - 2,973,389

- 20,251,881 - 20,251,881

- 2,892,284 - 2,862,284
271,149,804 30,765,725 52,937 2,873,499,153
(268,760,322) (29,777,665) 10,919 (112,708,402)
262,579,296 - - 494,957,799
- - - (495,241,766)

7,379,271 2,605,093 - 32,565,867
269,958,567 2,605,093 - 32,281,900
1,198,245 (27,172,572) 10,919 (80,426,502)
98,227,500 103,403,146 6,282,614 162,277,506
- - - 72,466

99,425,745 76,230,574 6,293,533 $ 81,923,470
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School District of Philadelphia
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Activities (page 35) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 41) $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Non capitalized purchases that exceed capital outlays.

The net effect of miscellaneous transactions involving losses arising from disposal
and sale of capital assets are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded repayments.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

The net revenue (loss) of certain activities of the Internal Service Fund is reported with
governmental activities.

Transfers In to the Internal Service Fund is reported with the governmental activities.

(80,426,502)

(81,554,715)

1,462,847

(12,753,693)

81,945

117,439,250

21,387,330

(648,056)

573,424

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 35) 3

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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School District of Philadelphia

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Due From Other Governments
Other Receivables
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Machinery & Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits Payable
Termination Compensation Payable
Due to Other Funds
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Termination Compensation Payable
Severance Payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and Net Position

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2014

Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Food Service Print Shop
10,902 $ -
- 110,512
5,909,961 10,119
3,204,887 50
1,764,204 28,577
10,889,954 149,258
15,732,384 613,530
(13,993,603) (577,083)
1,738,781 36,447
12,628,735 $ 185,705
6,367,342 $ 25,550
749,492 20,156
137,660 -
2,564,547 -
9,849,041 45,706
1,915,035 139,999
745,629 -
2,660,664 139,999
12,509,705 185,705
1,738,781 36,447
(1,619,751) (36,447)
119,030 -
12,628,735 $ 185,705




School District of Philadelphia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Enterprise Fund
Food Service

Internal Service Fund
Print Shop

Operating Revenues:

3 -

523,665

523,665

442 886
296,529

8,119
424,187

1,171,721

(648,056)

54,479
20,153

(573,424)

573,424

Food Service Revenue 1,408,509
Sale of Printing Services -
Total Operating Revenues 1,408,509
Operating Expenses:
Salaries 15,322,575
Employee Benefits 13,406,878
Other Purchased Service - Food 40,390,369
Other Purchased Service - Supplies 652,333
Depreciation 387,279
Other Operating Expenses 1,998,372
Total Operating Expenses 72,157,806
Operating Gain/(Loss) (70,749,297)
Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):
Federal and State Grants 74,038,754
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets -
Income (loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 3,289,457
Transfers In -
Transfers In/(Out) (289,457)
Change in Net Position 3,000,000
Total Net Position July 1, 2013 (2,880,970)
Total Net Position June 30, 2014 119,030

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



School District of Philadelphia

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Users
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses

Net Cash (Used)/Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments to/Advances from Other Funds
State Sources

Federal Sources

Transfers In/(Out)

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Facilities Acquisition, Construction, Improvements
Gain on disposal of Assets

Net Cash Used by Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents July 1, 2013

Cash and Cash Equivalents June 30, 2014

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Donated Food Commodities
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) in Other Current Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
(Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits Payabie
Increase/(Decrease) in Termination Compensation Payable
(Decrease) in Severance Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Non cash items:
Federal and State Grant revenue not yet received

Donated Commodities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Enterprise Fund Internal Service Fund
Food Service Print Shop
1,408,509 $ 523,665
(29,271,257) (754,034)
(31,400,540) -
(1,998,372) (444,141)
(61,261,660) (674,510)
(8,527,910) -
5,110,579 37.490
64,965,234 16,988
(289,457) 573,424
61,258,446 627,902
(10,296) -
6,019 7.454
(4,277) 7.454
(7,491) (39,154)
18,393 149,666
10,902 ) 110,512
(70,749,297) $ (648,056)
387,279 8,119
4,446,288 -
(204,887) 16,521
510,618 (912)
- (50)
4,890,143 (35,513)
(519,867) (14,564)
45,111 (55)
(67,048) -
9,487,637 (26,454)
(61,261,660) 3 (674,510)
5,909,961 $ 10,119
4,446,288 -



School District of Philadelphia
Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Due From Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Due to Student Activities
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Various Purposes

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

June 30, 2014

Private - Purpose

Agency
Funds

5,195,485
64,570,113

1,371,152
14,656,092

85,792,842

79,480,460
5,195,485
1,116,897

Trust Funds
$ -
748,875
200,013
59
048,947
$ 048,947

85,792,842
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Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

ADDITIONS
Gifts and Contributions
Interest Received

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships Awarded

Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position July 1, 2013

Net Position June 30, 2014

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Private Purpose
Trust Funds

123,338
1,333

124,671

124,671

824,276

948,947
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SCHOOL DISTRICT OF PHILADELPHIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

These notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements and include a summary of accounting policies and practices and other information
considered necessary to ensure a clear understanding of the statements.

I

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies and practices of the School District of Philadelphia (the “School District”), as reflected in the accompanying
financial statements for the Fiscal Year that ended June 30, 2014, conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) for
local government units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the “GASB™).

The most significant accounting policies are summarized below:

A.

Reporting Entity

The School District is the largest school district in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the “Commonwealth’) and the eighth
largest public educational system in the United States according to enrollment data. In Fiscal Year 2014, the School District
served over 202,990 students, including those in Charter and Alternative Schools, as well as employed over 17,300 full-time
professional and non-professional persons. The boundaries of the School District are coterminous with the boundaries of the
City of Philadelphia (the “City”). The School District is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth created to assist in the
administration of the General Assembly’s duties under the state Constitution to “provide for the maintenance and support of a
thorough and efficient system of public education to serve the needs of the Commonwealth.”

As such, the School District is a separate and independent home rule school district of the first class formally established by the
Philadelphia Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”) in December of 1965. The Philadelphia Home Rule Charter Act, P.L. 643 (the
“Act”) expressly limits the powers of the City by prohibiting the City from, among other things, assuming the debt of the School
District or enacting legislation regulating public education and its administration except only to set tax rates for school purposes
as authorized by the General Assembly of the Commonwealth. Although the School District is an independent legal entity, it is
considered to be a component unit of the City for reporting purposes only and is included in the City of Philadelphia’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (the “CAFR™).

Effective December 2001, in a cooperative effort with the City to address the School District’s financial needs, the
Commonwealth assumed governing control of the School District by declaring it financially distressed in accordance with
Sections 691 and 696 of the Public School Code of 1949.

Shortly thereafter, a five-member School Reform Commission (the “SRC”) was established. The SRC exercises all powers and
has all duties of the original Board of Education. The Board of Education continues in office, performing only the duties
assigned, if any, by the SRC. At the time of this report, the SRC has not delegated any duties to the Board of Education.
Furthermore, the Governor of Pennsylvania appointed the chairman and two other members of the SRC while the Mayor of the
City of Philadelphia appointed the remaining two members. The five-member commission performs its fiscal oversight
responsibility for the Philadelphia public school system.

Prior to the formation of the SRC, the School District implemented a new management structure where a Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEO”) was appointed in lieu of a “Superintendent” effective November 1, 2000.

Although the CEO performs all duties imposed on the Superintendent of Schools by both the Charter and the Public School
Code of 1949 (the “School Code”) and serves as the Secretary and Treasurer of the Governing Body of the School Bistrict, the
new designation was designed to provide the Governing Body with more freedom and to avoid being constrained to select a
traditional “academic scholar” ignoring the business experience that is equally necessary for such a large school district. In
addition, the new administrative and management structure of the School District recognized the enormity of the job of CEO of
a large, urban public school system and successfully sought to implement a more corporate accountability structure and team
management approach to ensure that the School District would accomplish specific objectives and overall goals. The
organizational structure at June 30, 2014 included a Superintendent/CEO, Deputy Superintendent, General Counsel, Chief
School Police Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Academic Supports Officer, Chief Student Support Services Officer, Chief
of Schools Officer (vacant), Chief of Talent Officer, Chief of School Operations Officer, Chief of Information Technology
Officer, Chief of Family and External Relations Officer, Government Relations Officer, Strategic Partnerships Officer,
Inspector General, Internal Audit Director (vacant) and a Charter School Office. Internal Audit and the Inspector General report
to the School Reform Commission (SRC). The General Counsel and Charter School Office have a dual reporting relationship to
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the SRC and the Superintendent/CEO. The Chief School Police Officer, Deputy Superintendent, Strategic Partnerships Officer
and Government Relations Officer directly report to the Superintendent/CEO. All others report through the Deputy
Superintendent to the Superintendent/CEO.

The Superintendent/CEO is responsible for the general supervision of all business affairs of the School District, the furnishing
of all reports to the Department of Education of the Commonwealth and other matters prescribed by the School Code, as
amended. As Treasurer, the Superintendent/CEO receives all Commonwealth appropriations, School District taxes and other
monies of the School District; makes payments on orders approved by the Governing Body; and is responsible for the
investment of School District funds. Under this management structure, the Superintendent/CEO still performs the duties of the
Superintendent of Schools under the Charter, including the pre-audit duties and functions of the school controller.

Moreover, the School District also serves as the agent for the Intermediate Unit No. 26 (the “1U”); a separate entity established
by the Commonwealth to provide special education, special education transportation, and non-pubtlic school services. Similar
to the School District, the SRC also constitutes the Board of Directors of the 1U; the boundaries of the 1U are coterminous with
those of the City and School District. The School District performs all 1U services, pursuant to contracts between the two. The
relationship between the School District and the U was re-evaluated during fiscal year 2011 and as a result the [U is reported as
a blended component unit in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14 “The Financial Reporting Entity”, as amended.

District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In June 1999, GASB issued Statement No. 34 “Basic Financial Statements - and Management s Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments” (GASB Statement No. 34) effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2001. This statement,
known as the “Reporting Model” better defines the way government entities prepare and present financial information. State
and local governments previously have used a financial reporting model substantially different from the one used to prepare
private-sector financial reports. As such, GASB Statement No. 34 establishes requirements and a reporting model for the annual
financial reports of state and local governments. This statement was specifically developed to make annual reports easier to
understand and more useful to other people who use governmental financial information to make decisions.

The financial reporting model includes a requirement that the financial statements are accompanied by a narrative introduction
and analytical overview of the government’s financial activities in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(“MD&A™). This analysis is similar to the analysis that private sector entities provide in their annual reports and is Required
Supplementary Information (the “RSI1”). The basic financial statements include both district-wide (based on the School District
as a whole) and fund financial statements. District-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either
governmental or business-type. Required supplementary information other than MD&A, including the required budgetary
comparison information, are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Discussion & Analysis - MD&A discusses the current-year results in comparison with the prior year, with
emphasis on the current year. The MD&A is a fact-based analysis discussing the positive and negative aspects of the
comparison with the prior year. It uses charts, graphs, and tables to enhance the understandability of the information. The
MD&A analyzes overall financial position and results of operations to assist users in assessing whether financial position has
improved or deteriorated as a result of the year's operations. It presents the information needed to support this analysis of
financial position and results of operations required. ‘

More specifically, the MD&A analyzes: (1) the balances and transactions of individual funds; and (2) any significant variations
between original and final budget amounts and between final budget amounts and actual results for the general fund. The
MD&A also describes: (1) any significant capital asset and long-term debt activity that occurred during the year, including a
discussion of commitments made for capital expenditures, changes in credit ratings, and debt limitations that may affect the
financing of planned facilities or services; and (2) any currently known facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected to have a
significant effect on financial position (net position) or results of operations (revenues, expenses, and other changes in net
position).

District-Wide Financial Statements — The District-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) are prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the government’s activities. This approach includes
not only current assets and liabilities (such as cash and accounts payable), but also capital assets, deferred outflows of resources,
long-tern liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as amended by GASB Statement #63-Financial Reporting of Deferred
Qutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.

Accrual accounting also reports all of the revenues and costs associated with providing such services each year, not just those
received or paid in the current fiscal year or soon thereafter. Fiduciary funds are not included in district-wide financial
statements.

Statement of Net Position — The Statement of Net Position is designed to present the financial position of the primary
government. The School District reports all capital assets in the district-wide Statement of Net Position and reports depreciation
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expense — the cost of “using up” capital assets — in the Statement of Activities. The net position of the School District is
presented in three categories: 1) investment in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted. In the district-
wide Statement of Net Position, both the activities’ assets and liabilities: (a) are presented on a consolidated basis; and (b) are
reflected, on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
obligations.

Statement of Activities — The Statement of Activities presents expenses and revenues in a format that focuses on the cost of each
function to the School District. The expense of individual functions is compared to the revenue generated by the function (for
instance, through user charges or governmental grants). These directly matched revenues are called program revenues. This
format enables the district-wide Statement of Activities to reflect both the gross and net cost per functional category
(instruction, student support services, pupil transportation, etc.) that are otherwise being supported by general government
revenues.

Program revenues must be directly associated with a function and are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital)
grants while the capital grants column reflects only capital-specific grants. Multi-purpose grants and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. Direct expenses are considered those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. The School District allocates indirect expenses to their applicable functions.

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the School District are organized by fund types. Each
fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate accounting entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording
cash and/or other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities of balances and changes therein.
Each fund is segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with
specific regulations, restrictions or limitations. A reconciliation is also presented which briefly explains adjustments necessary
to reconcile the fund financial statements to the governmental activities column of the district-wide financial statements.

The School District’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements as well. Since by definition, these assets are
held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address activities or other obligations of the School District, these

funds are not incorporated into the district-wide financial statements.

There are three major fund types presented in this report. A brief description of each is summarized below:

(H Governmental Fund Types - These are the funds through which most costs of district functions are typically paid for
or financed. The funds included in this category are:

(a) General Fund - the principal operating fund of the School District; accounts for and reports all financial
resources not accounted for and reported in another fund.

(b) Special Revenue Funds — these funds account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or capital
projects. Special Revenue funds include:

(1) Intermediate Unit Fund - used to account for State appropriations for special education and non-
public school services, a blended component unit of the School District;

(i1) Categorical Funds - used to account for specific purpose Federal, State, City or Private grants;

(iif) Trust Funds — used to account for funds where both principal and earnings may be used to
support School District programs that benefit either the district itself or its students.

©) Debt Service Fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

(d) Capital Projects Fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities
and other capital assets.

(e) Permanent Fund - used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support District programs that benefit the
District or its students.
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(2) Proprietary Fund Types - These are funds that account for the operations of the School District that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to those often found in the private sector. The funds included in this category are:

(a) Enterprise Fund - used to account for the operation of the Food Service Division; and

(b) Internal Service Fund — used to account for the operation of the Print Shop and outsourced reproduction of
materials for printing and copy services provided to various School District divisions on a cost
reimbursement basis.

3 Fiduciary Fund Types - These funds account for assets held by the School District as a trustee or agent for
individuals, private organizations and/or other governmental units. The funds included in this category are:

(a) Private Purpose Trust Funds - used to account for all trust agreements for which both principal and
earnings benefit individuals, private organizations or other governments, most of which are through
scholarships and awards; and

(b) Agency Funds - used to account for assets held by the School District as trustee or agent for others. At
June 30, 2014, the School District administered the Payroll Liabilities, Student Activities and Unclaimed
Monies Funds.

During the course of operations the School District has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual balances
outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements,
certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between funds included
in governmental activities (governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as
internal balances in the governmental activities column on the Statement of Net Position. Similarly, balances between the funds
included in business-type activities (enterprise fund) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances
in the business-type activities column of the Statement of Net Position.

The School District reports the General Fund, Intermediate Unit Fund (a blended component unit), Categorical Funds, Debt
Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Enterprise Fund as its major funds.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment of transactions or events is determined by the applicable measurement focus
and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources
or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial
statements.

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting similar to that used for Proprietary and Private Purpose Trust Funds. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Agency Funds report only
assets and liabilities and therefore do not have a measurement focus. Agency Funds, however, use the accrual basis of
accounting that recognizes both receivables and payables.

Non-exchange transactions represent activities where the School District either gives or receives value without directly
receiving or giving equal value in exchange and includes grants and donations. Revenues from grants and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are satisfied.

It is the School District’s policy to first use restricted assets for expenses incurred for which restricted and unrestricted assets are
available.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. This type of presentation focuses on the determination of and changes in financial position, and
generally only current assets and current liabilities, are included on the balance sheet.

Revenues are recorded as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are
collectible within the current fiscal period, or soon thereafter, to pay liabilities of the current fiscal period. For this purpose, the
School District considers revenues to be available for the General Fund if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period or beyond the normal time of receipt because of highly unusual circumstances and within 90 days of the
current fiscal period for Categorical Funds.

Revenues from grants and donations, however, are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements were
satisfied and the resources are available. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred as required by accrual
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accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Local taxes, such as liquor by the drink, school income and business use and occupancy, associated with the current fiscal
period are recognized when the underlying exchange transaction has occurred and the resources are available. Imposed non-
exchange revenues, such as real estate taxes, are recognized when the enforceable legal claim arises and the resources are
available. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the School
District.

The School District receives the vast majority of'its revenues from governmental entities. These revenues primarily come in the
form of state subsidies (gross instruction, special education and transportation, retirement and social security reimbursement
etc.), local taxes (real estate, school income, use and occupancy, liquor sales etc.), federal & state grants and non-tax revenues
(City contributions, Parking contributions etc.)

Although GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of account groups, it does provide that these records be
maintained and requires that the information be incorporated into the governmental column in the district-wide Statement of Net
Position.

However, private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, were incorporated
through GASB Statement No. 62- Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November
30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The School District has implemented this statement and prepared both the
district-wide and proprietary fund financial statements in accordance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1)} charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or privileges rendered;
2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenue rather than as program revenuc. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. Indirect costs, such as
depreciation, are allocated as specific program expenses.

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the School District’s Enterprise Fund (or Food Service) and Internal
Service Fund (or Print Shop) reflect charges for sales and services. Operating expenses for these funds include the costs of sales
and services, administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

Q) Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include currency on hand, deposits, short-term highly Hiquid investments and investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. State statutes require the School
District to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, and/or the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and/or
collateralized repurchase agreements.

Non-participating investment contracts or, more generally, certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements are
reported at cost, which approximates fair value. However, all other investments are reported at cost.

o~
[N}
~—

Real Estate Taxes

Ad valorem real estate tax revenues are recognized in compliance with GASB Statement No. 33. This statement
provides that tax revenues should be recognized in the period for which they are levied except that they shall not be
recognized unless they are collected within the current fiscal year or expected to be collected within sixty days after
the end of the current fiscal year.

The tax on real estate in Philadelphia for public school purposes is based on a calendar year basis. Beginning July
2013 through December 2013, the tax rate was 53.09 mills. Of this total, 16.75 mills are levied directly by the
School District pursuant to legislative authorization by the General Assembly of the Commonwealth without further
approval of the Council of the City of Philadelphia (“City Council”) while the remaining 36.34 mills are levied
pursuant to legislative authorization and approval by ordinance of the City Council. Starting in January of 2014, the
tax rate was 7.382 mills. In calendar year 2014 the City of Philadelphia implemented full assessed value (AV1)
which accounts for the decrease in the millage.
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Although assessments are certified and taxes are levied on January 1*", taxes are not due and payable until March
31 of each calendar year. Interest and penalty accrue at the rate of 1.5 percent per month beginning April 1%
Unpaid taxes are considered delinquent the following January 1* and are then subject to lien. The City has
established real estate investment and improvement programs that abate, for limited periods, tax increases that result
from higher assessments for improved properties or, are otherwise known as “tax abatements,” and typically forgive
tax increases for up to ten (10) years.

Due from Other Governments

This refers to amounts due from Federal, State, City and Grantors for entitlements, subsidies, taxes, and grants. It
represents primarily receivables for (1) retirement and FICA revenue recognized for current year expenditures and
(2) grant revenues are recognized when all the applicable eligibility requirements are met and the resources are
available.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending or borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “Due To/From Other Funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

Inventories

Inventories in the General Fund are valued at an average cost of $1.3 million. Included are expendable supplies of
$1.0 million held for consumption by the Maintenance and Transportation Departments and Warehouse furniture
and forms of $0.3 million. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time expendable inventories are purchased
and as an expense at the time the warehouse inventories are issued. In Fiscal Year 2014 the District began to report
non expendable inventory along with the expendable supplies as an offset to the nonspendable fund balance reserve,
which indicates that, although they are a component of net current position, they do not constitute available
resources.

Enterprise Fund (or Food Service) inventories include $1.5 million donated by the Federal Government which is
valued at cost or estimated value. All other food or supply inventories are valued at last unit cost in accordance with
the recommendations of the Food and Nutrition Service of the Department of Agriculture and will be expensed
when used.

Internal Service Fund (or Print Shop) inventories are valued at last unit cost and are expensed as they are consumed.
Artwork

Collections of art and historical treasures (artwork) meet the definition of a capital asset and normally should be
reported in the financial statements at lower of cost or market value at the time of donation. Due to the lack of
historical records to establish a proper carrying value, and the immateriality of the previously reported value of §8.1
million (0.3 percent of total assets for Governmental Activities), the artwork asset values were removed from the
financial statements as a prior period adjustment beginning in Fiscal Year 2014.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the School
District as assets with an initial individual cost of at least $500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one (1) year.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are valued at their estimated fair market value as of the date donated. The costs associated with the normal
maintenance and repair of capital assets, that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend its useful life,
are not capitalized.

GASB Statement 51 requires the capitalization of intangible assets. The most common circumstances in which
GASBS 51 applies to the School District is in cases involving computer software. The School District capitalizes
internally generated software applications and modifications to existing internally generated software applications as
well as purchased software and modifications.

Land and Construction in Progress are not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment of the School District are
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:
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Assets Years
Buildings 50
Building improvements 10-30
Equipment 5-20
Vchicles 8-10
Office equipment 10
Computer equipment 5
Intangibles 10

Capital assets acquired or constructed for governmental fund purposes are recorded as expenditures in the fund
incurring the obligation and are capitalized at cost in the district-wide Statement of Net Position.

Proprietary Fund equipment acquisitions are capitalized in the appropriate fund and depreciated over 5 to 20 years
in the Enterprise or Internal Service Funds also using the straight-line method.

With regards to sale of School District real property, on August 15, 2013, School Reform Commission (“SRC”)
suspended that portion of Section 707(3) of the Public School Code (the "School Code") requiring court approval of
any private sale and the portion of Section 7-709 of the School Code which provides that the School District may
lease unused and unnecessary lands and buildings for any lawful purpose, other than educational use, by suspending
the limitations on leasing for educational use.

Since only Section 707(3) of the School Code had been suspended, the remaining provisions of Section 707,
including the provision which requires the School District to use the proceeds from the sale of property only for the
payment of debt service or for capital projects remained in effect.

By suspending portions of the School Code The District is allowed to use sales proceeds for operating purposes after
all callable bonds on the property are defeased, the funds are set aside for capital purposes in an amount equal to the

non-callable bonds, and transaction costs are paid.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues represent monies received in advance of being earned. The School District has one fund that has
unearned revenue reported on the Balance Sheet, Governmental Funds. In Categorical Funds, unearned revenue
represents grant funds received prior to expenditure and prior to meeting all eligibility requirements. As of June 30,
2014, the Categorical Funds reported unearned revenue of $12.4 million.

Insurance

For many years, medical benefits for nearly all of the School District’s represented and unrepresented employees
were procured through a fully-insured medical contract. In Fiscal Year 2010, the fully-insured premium payments
increased by over 10% and the prevailing sentiment predicted continued excessively high increases. The unions
agreed to a conversion to a self-funded, self-insured plan to be implemented in Fiscal Year 2011. The District’s
actuary concluded that, if implemented well, sclf-funded self-insured plan would mitigate the level of annual
increases the District would experience in medical costs. The School District’s experience during Fiscal Year 2012,
2013 and 2014 support the actuarial conclusion that we are managing these costs better.

The School District is also self-insured for most of its risks including casualty losses, public liability,
unemployment, and weekly indemnity. Workers’ Compensation is covered by excess insurance over a $5.0 million
self-insured retention per occurrence with a limit of $25.0 million. The School District does purchase certain other
insurance as well. For instance, the School District maintains property insurance to cover losses related to damage
sustained from fire, flood or boiler and machinery with a deductible of $1.0 million and a limit of $250.0 million per
occurrence with certain sub-limits as specified in the policy terms. Certain insurance coverage’s, including employee
performance bonds, student accident and employee dishonesty bonds, are also procured regularly. Medical self-
insured benefits, unemployment and workers’ compensation coverage are funded by pro-rata charges to each fund,
while the cost of weekly indemnity coverage is shared by the School District and some covered employees.

Liabilities expected to be liquidated with available resources are shown as accrued expenditures in the General
Fund. Amounts expected to be paid from future years’ resources are shown in the district-wide Statement of Net

Position.

Compensated Absences

[t is School District policy to permit employees to acecumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. A
liability for these benefits is accrued in the district-wide Statement of Net Position if they have matured (i.e. unused
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reimbursable leave). A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds for employees who have
resigned or retired as of June 30th. The School District’s leave policy is as follows:

(a) Vacation and Personal Leave - School District employees who are required to work on a twelve-month
schedule are credited with vacation at rates which vary depending on length of service or job classification.
In addition, almost all School District employees are entitled to three days of personal leave annually.
Vacation and personal leave may be used or accumulated within certain limits until paid upon retirement or
termination at the rate of pay at the time of separation.

(b) Sick Leave - Most School District employees are credited with 10 days of sick leave annually with no
limitation on accumulation. Upon retirement or termination, such employees are paid 25% of the value of
their accumutlated sick leave balance at the rate of pay at the time of separation.

Long-Term Obligations

In the district-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types presented in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activitics or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, prepaid
bond insurance premium costs and refunding charges are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
straight line method. Bonds payable are reported separately from the applicable bond premium or discount while
prepaid bond insurance premium costs are reported as assets and deferred refunding charges are reported as deferred
outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current fiscal period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are rep